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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLORS AND MANAGEMENT
made pursuant to Section 413(2) (c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended)
The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

« The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and the Reguiations made thereunder.

= The Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements.

* The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, this Report
« presents fairly the Council's operafing resut and firancial position for the year, and
« accords with Council's accounting and other records
We are not aware of any matter that would render this Report false or misleading inany way.

Signed inaccordance with a resolution of Council made on 25 August 2015.

Councilior Bill Pickering Councilior Roy Maggio

Mayor Deputy Mayor

Ms Gail Connolly Mr John Todd

General Manager Chief Financial Officer
(Responsible Accounting Officer)
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

INCOME STATEMENT

Original
Budget* Actual Actual
2015 Notes 2015 2014
(3'000) ($'000) (§°000)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
66,100 Rates and Annual Charges Xa) 66 641 63,259
14,825 User Charges and Fees by 14,861 13,888
3,347  Interest and Investment Revenue 3e) 4811 4,331
7,061 Other Revenues d) 8,938 8,432
Grants & Contributions prowded for
6,563 operating purpcses 3{ebf 6,932 5,549
Grants & Contributions provded
424 for capital purposes 3(elf) 30,968 14,229
Other Income:
Net gain from the disposal of assets 6 15 64
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
- associates using the equity method 19 - -
98,320 TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 134,058 110,352
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
42,666 Employee Benelts and On-costs 4(a) 39638 39,788
234 Borrowing Costs 4b 266 146
26,654 Materials and Contracts a(c) 25618 25,590
15,088  Degpreciation, Amortisation and knpairment 4(d) 14,778 16,558
17,224  Other Expenses 4(0) 12,865 12,697
. Interest and Investment Losses 3e) .
- Net Loss Forn the disposal of assets 6
Share of interests in joint ventures and associates
- using the equity method 19 - -
101,866 TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 93,055 94,781
ﬁﬂﬂ OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 41,003 15,571
- Operating result from discontinued operations 24 - -
(3.542 NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 2Aa) 41,003 15,571
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE GRANTS
’3072 & CONTRIBUTIONS PROVIDED FOR CAPITAL PURPOSES 10,044 1,342

' Onginal budget as approved by Council - Refer Note 18
The above hcome Statement should be read in conunction with the accomparnying notes
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

General Purpose Financial Statements  Year Ended 30 June 2015

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes 2015 2014
($°000) (5°000)

Net operating result for the year - from Income Statement 41,003 15,571
Other comprehensive income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to
operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 200v) 77,809 347 818
Adustment to comect prior period emors 20(d) (6,424) 1.832

Amounts which will be reclassified subse quently to
operating result when specific conditions are met.

Realised available-for-sale investment gains recognised in revenue  20(b)

Gain (loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 20(v) - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 71,475 349 651
Total comprehensive income for the year 112,478 365,222
Attributable to

- Council 112478 365,222

- Non-cantrolling Interests - -

The above Statement of Comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Il 5 EmE
Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstap 8 . C]ty Of- dec

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 7

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

General Purpose Financial Statements  Year Ended 30 June 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes 2015 2014

$900)  (s'000) (5000)  (5'000)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(a) 14,305 16,793
Imestments 6) 90,704 51.500
Receivables 7 8,314 7.713
Inventories 8 618 4389
Other 8 798 315
Non-Current assels classiffied as held for Sale 2 - -
Total Current Assets 114,739 75810
Non<Current Assets
Imestments 6(0) 32,743 38,665
Recehebles 7 1.064 962
Invertories 8 . .
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 9 2,245,889 2.268.131
Investments accounted for using ecquity method 13 . -
Imestment Propedy 14 105,628 2,800
Intangible assels 25 - -
Other 8 -
Total Non-Current Assets 2,385,324 2310558
TOTAL ASSETS 2,500,063 2,386,368
LIABILITES
Curmrent Liabilities
Payables 10(@ 19,229 19.205
Borrowings 10{a) 993 793
Provsions 10(m 10,868 10,314
Total Current Liabllitles 31,0%0 30312
Non-Cumrent Liabilities
Payables 10(a) - -
Barrowings 10(2) 5,241 4822
Provsions 102 156 136
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,397 4.958
VoL L. -, Y -
NETASMETS = . oL
EQUITY
Retalned Eamings 20 1,783,775 1742772
Revaluation resenves 2 679.801 608.326
Council equity interest 2463576 2,351,098

Minority equity inferes!
TOTAL EQUITY

2,463,576

2,351,096

The @bowe Stalement of Financial Posilion should be read in conjunction with the accom panying noles,
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

& §| & & [§|8
§ (3¢ F |4
& &S| & 8 |§]|8
LR
§| ] g |88
& g g |%|8
§ #| & 8 |§|E
§| g 8 § (5§
g

EREEEIEE
0 |s| 7 F|g|d] i
]

L

& s € [&|&| s
§| 3 ;;Ez
, -
: & 8% 8 R A
[ |

: : 5
§E§g§z§§§§
igiiﬂzzzésﬁ z

Lifestyle and opportunty & your daorstep 8 @ City of Ryde

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity

@ your doorstep Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 9

ITEM 3 (continued)

ATTACHMENT 6

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Original
Budget’
2015 Notes 2018 2014
($'000) {$9000)  ($'000) ($000)  {$000)
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts

66,100
15,110
3347
6,833

Rates & Annust Charges

User Charges & Faes
Invastment Revenue and ecast
Grants and Contdbutions

66,363
18,307

4,742
s 483

- Dspos#s and Retentions
13491 Otner

Eayments
(42.772) Employno Berwis and ancosts
(28,901) Matenals and Contracts
1234 Borrowng Costs
- Deposds and Retentions
(18,577) Other

Net cash provided {or used)in
9265  Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
51,500 Sale of Irvestments
Sale of Irveatment Properny
«  Sdle of Real Eslato Adzels
1,265 Sale of Infestructure Propetty, Plant snd Equpment
«  Sele of Interests m Joirk Vertues/dAsszociates
Frocesds om Boundary Agustment
- Other
Payments
(90,704) Purchasa of mestments
Purchasa of mvastment property
(21,655) Purchasa of Propecty, Plant and Equipment
«  Pumhese ofRoal Estate
Purchase of hterests in Joint Ventures/Associates
- Other
Net cash provided by (or used In)
(59,5595 Investing Actlvities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts
1,500 Bomowngs and Advences
- Dther
Payments
|385] Bomowings and Advencas
Lesse Lialilibes
Other
Net cash provided by (or used in)
515 Financing Activities

(49,7 15] Net Incraase [Decregsa) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

235
6400

(39.363)
(28.518)
(256}
(1476
(11.464)

54,723

(52,000
(1.150)
(25,585)

(55,330)

1.500

881}

(1.468)

63,368
15,335
3,805
18,726
2,35
7044
129,223}
124 686)
(4)

11,426)
(10,602)

32,034

804
1468

146,080)

[35.944)

(37.600)

2,700

{507)

2,193

112)

15,783 Cs4h & Cean Eivalents st beginning Repoting Pd. 11(a) 15,783 15,805
(23,0251 Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of Reporting Pd |1(0} 12,308 15,193
| ————— | — —

* Ongnal budoat as appraved by Council - Refer Naota 16
The sbove Statemert of Cash Fiows shoul@ ba ndad in corgunction with the accompaning notes
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes o the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financlal statements are
set out below. These palicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government
Act (1993) and Regulation, and the Lecal Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reperting
City of Ryde is a nat for profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

] New and amended standards adopted by Council

During the curmrent year, the fallowing relevant standards became mandatory for Council and have
been adopted:

* AASB 10 Consofidated Financial Statements

» AASBE 11 Joint Arrangements

* AASBE 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 10 introduced a new definition of control based on the substance of the relationship and
required Councils to consider their involvement with other entities regardiess of whether there was a
financial interest.

AASE 11 dassified joint arrangements into either joint ventures {equity accounting) or joint operations
(accounting for share of assets and liabilties)

AASB 12 has increased the level of disclosures required where Council has any interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or unconsolidated structured entities,

These have had no significant impact on Ceuncil's Financial Statements.,

(i)  Early adoption of standards

City of Ryde has not elected to apply any proncuncements before their operative date in the annual
reporting periad beginning 1 July 2014,

(/i) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
Iinstruments) at fair value through profit or loss. certain classes of property, plant and equipment and
Investment property.

(iv) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Council's accounting
policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity
and that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances

(v) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

City of Ryde makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumpticns
that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are set out below!

(iy Estimated fair values of investment properties.

(i) Estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

(i)  Estimated tip remediation provisions.

: BT EE
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes o the financial statements 30 June 2015

(vi) Significant judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

(i Impairment of Receivables
Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables
inNcte 7.

(1)  Projected Section 94 Commitments
Council has usad significant judgement in determining future Section 94 income and
expenditure in Note 17.

(W)  Valuation of Infrastructure assets
Council employs a number of staff that possess Tertiary qualfications in Engineering. Those
staff are also responsible for estimating the cost of construction of new infrastructure works.
especially for works done in-house, Using this expertise Council has revalued its infrastructure
assets to the cost of replacing those assets in-house. Those estimates are based on the actual
costs to replace infrastructure assets by Council recently.

The same staff are also responsible for estimating the useful lives of infrastructure assets, based on
their experiences and similar assets in other Council areas.

The changes, based on these judgements. impact the amount of depreciation.

(b) Revenue recognition

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council's activities
as described below. Council bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arangement.

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue Is measured cn
major income categories as follows:

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (inckiding developer contributions) are recognised as
revenues when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required but the
Council may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating
year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earier, upon receipt of the rates.

Control over granted assets |s normally obtained upon their recelpt (or acquittal) or upon earller notification
that a grant has been secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.

Revenue is recognised when the Council cbtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the
contribution, & is probable that the economic benefits compnsing the contnibution will fiow to the Council and
the amount of the contribution can be measured refiably.

Where granis or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition
that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions were
undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note 3(g). The note also
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council's
operations during the current year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
senvice has not been provided at balance date.
Usor charges and fees

User charges and fees (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the senvice has
been provided, the payment is recetved, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs,

Sale of plant, property, Infrastructure and equipment

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the
buyer.

: BE T
Lifestyle and opportunity @ your daorstep 1 . Clty Of dec

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
(@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 12

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

Interest and remnts

Interest and rents are recognised as revenue on a proportional basis when the payment Is due, the value of
the payment is natified, or the payment is received, whichewver first ocours,

(c) Principles of consolidation

(0 The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 40X(1) of the LGA 1983, all money and property received by
Council is held in the Coundil's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust
Fund. The consolidated fund and other entities through which the Council cantrols resources to carry on its
functions have been included in the financial statements forming pant of this report.

(i) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 (as amended), a
separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the Coundil
in trust which must be applied only for the purposes of or in accordance with the trusts relating to those
monies. Trust monies and property subject to Council's control have been included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Councd but not subject to the control of Council, have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the
Council office by any person free of charge.

(d) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where Council, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental cbligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long term
payables. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that Council will obtain ownership at the end
of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Coundil as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the period of the
lease,

Lease income from operating leases where Council is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis aver the lease term,

(e) Acquisition of assets

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all acquisitions of assets. Cost Is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Council's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

(f) Impairment of assets

Whilst Council does not currently hold any Goodwdll and intangible assets, there may be some that refate to
software or trademarks in the future, and if so, these assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and will be tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impaimment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's

Il ED B EaE :
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

s 30 June 2015

fair value |less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing iImpairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there is separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets cther than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for pessible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Notes to the nntndd’

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
Insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabifities on the balance shest.

(h) Receivables

Recetvables are recognised nitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within
14 days.

Callectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis, Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of
receivables) is used when there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to cdlect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. . Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy o financial recrganisation. and default or delinquency in payments
(more than 30 days overdue) are considered Indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the
impairment allowance Is the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-
term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting Is immatenal,

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement within other expenses. When a
recervable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent
period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previocusly written
off are credited against other expenses in the income statement.

(i) Inventories

() Raw materials and stores, wark in progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
include the transfer from equity of any gainsflosses on qualifying cash flow hedges refating to purchases of
raw material. Costs are assigned to individual tems of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for resale Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification and Includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during
development. When development is completed borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as
Incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if
the expenditure on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs
incurred while active development is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.

(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are dassified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through centinuing use. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried at
- ﬂ-‘ Bl R A ML AL A UL A S S R L AL
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

s 30 June 2015

fair value and conftractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement

Notes to the nntndd’

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent wnte down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increasas in fair value less costs to sed
of an asset {or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-curent asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale, Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet The liabilities of a disposal group held
for sale are presented separately from other llabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation in a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of business or area of operations, is part of a single co-
ocdinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the
face of the Income statement.

(k) Investments and other financial assets

Classification

Council classifies its financial assets in the following categones: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held to
maturity, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

0] Financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss

Financial assets at fair value through proft and loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(/) Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are dassified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are included in receivables (note 7) in the balance sheet.

(1) Held-to-maturity investments

Heid-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financal assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Coundl's management has the positive intention and abllity to hold to
maturity. if Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets,
the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Held to maturity financial
assets are included in non-current asset, axcept those with maturities less than 12 menths from the
reporting date, which are classified as current assets

(lv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. Investments are
designated as available for sale if they de not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
payments and management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

Financial assets - reclassification

Council may choose o reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-fortrading category
if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assats other
than lcans and receivables are pemmitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category only in rare
circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In
addition, Council may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale categories if it has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future and until maturity at the date of dassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amartised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before redassfication
date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets reciassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-matunity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of
cash flaws adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the
Coundil commits to purchase or sell the assel. Investments are Initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not camied at fair value through profit or loss Financial assets
carried at fair value through proft or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and Council has fransferred substantially al
the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Subsequent measuremont

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method,

Available-for-sale financial assets and finandial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses anising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss category are presented in the income statement within other income or other expenses
in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of revenue from continuing operations when Council’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and cther changes in the carmying amount of the security. The translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit and loss, and cther changes in carrying amount are
recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities reclassified
as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Details of how the fair value of financial instruments is determined are disclosed in note 1(1).

Impairment

Council assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is cbjective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mare events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

) Assets carried &t amortisad cost

For loans and recetvables, the amount of the loss |s measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (exduding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit o loss. If &
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

loan or held-to- maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the confract, As a practical
expedient, the group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
cbservable market price

Investment Policy

Council has an approved investment policy complying with Section 625 of the Local Government Act and
5212 of the LG (General) Regulations 2005. Investments are placed and managed in accordance with that
policy and having particular regard to authorised investments prescribed under the Ministerial Local
Government Investment Order. Council maintains an investment policy that comples with the Act and
ensures that it or its representatives exercise care, diligence and skill that a prudent person would exercise
in investing council funds.

Council amended its policy, following revisions to the Ministerial Local Government Investment Order, arising
from the Cole Inquiry recommendations. Certain investments that Council held are no longer prescribed,
Council has either divested itself of these, or they have matured with Council suffering a loss of principal,
which was recognised in the appropriate period

() Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial kabiities must be estimated for recognition and measurement
or for disclosure purposes

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets |s based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. Coundil uses a vanety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quates for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt instruments heid. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial Instruments,

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the curent market interest rate that is available to the
Council for similar financial instruments.

(m) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Council's assets have been progressively revalued to fair value in accordance with a staged implementation
advised by the Office of Local Government. At balance date the following classes of IPPE were stated at
their fair value:

Operational land (External Valuation),

Buildings — Specialised/Non Specialised (External Valuation).

Plant and equipment (as approximated by depreciated histerical cost)
Road assets —roads, bndges and footpaths (Intemal Valuation).
Drainage assets - (Internal Valuation).

Bulk earthworks — (Intemal Valuation),

Community land — (External Valuation).

Land Improvements (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).
Other structures (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).
Other assets (as approximated by depreciated historical cost),

As at 30 June 2013 Council had revised the useful lives of its infrastructure and Building assets and their
remaining lives, effective 1 July 2013

Council has moved to a condition basis for calculating depreciation, which determines the remaining useful
Ife and loss of future benefit, based on its condtion. To support this Council has also commenced a rolling

inspection of its infrastructure assets, plus reviews as part of its ongoing maintenance works, so that
condition data is kept as current as possible.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

Whiist this is not true "conditicn based™ depreciation, Council, in adopting this new method of depreciation,
has broken each of its asset categories into five condition ratings. Within each of these condition ratings,
Council has reviewed and determined both the useful life and loss of future benefit, while the asset traverses
through that condition rating, Therefore in each condition rating the asset will have a straight line
depreciation, which will increase as the condition rating increases and the condition of the asset decreases

Condition 5 represents those assets that are due for renewal, but are still in senvice. so will hald a residual
value until renewed,

Depreciation is no longer a representation of the inter-generational funding that is required for asset renewal,
this funding model is represented by straight line depreciation aver the useful life to the intervention point,
being the end of Condition 4.

The following table sets out the range of useful lives and depreciation within each condition rating by asset
category

Usetat Hifo (rangn of years)

Asset Category

Buldng: - SpecialssdNon Specidised 10 60 0 5-10 1-5 56 - 100
Dranage asssts 520 15-130 10- 40 5-15 s-10 40 - 2200
Land Iirgeonements s 5 5 s 5 b
Other asssts 1-5 1-25 1-10 1-5 1-5 5-50
Dthar structures 5-2 5-f0 2-40 3-15 5 20-150
Plant and sgupment 2-7
Road assefs - roads, bndges and foctpaths 5.20 2-130 2-50 3-20 5.0 y7-200

Asset Category

Buldngs - Speciabsaahion Spacigiged 050 DH83% 125%  130% - A00% 0.50% - 3 00%
Cranage assets DIS%-500% D35%-L67% 053% 3008 1.00%-7.00% D.25% - 7.00%
Lang Improsmmerts L00% 3.00% 5.00% 0% I00% LODW-9.00%
Other 3ussts 10%46-500% 1AD% - 20.00% .00 -30.00% 7.00% - 5000% 100% - 50.00%
Olher structures D.25% - 100% 05M-2.00% 0A3% 5.00% 100 2333% 025% - 2333%
Plant and aqupman S00% - 20.00%
ROa0 335608 ~ 10308, INOGES 300 fOLpMns 0.2%%-187% 038%-500% 030%-5.00% 07%%-2333% 025%-23.33%

Operational tand was last valued s at June 2014. Councll Is of the opinion that the carrying amount of the
asset would not differ materially had a revaluation cocurred at the reporting date

For all other assets, Council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any Indication that a revalued
asset’s carrying amcunt may differ materially from that which would be determined if the asset were revalued
at the reporting date. If any such indication exists, Council determines the asset’s fair value and will revalue
the asset to that amount. Full revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a 5 year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation reserve. To the
extent that the mncrease reverses a decrease prevously recognising profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first charged
against revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the asset;
all other decreases are charged to the Income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the item will flow to
Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement dunng the financial pericd in which they are incurred

The assets’' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. In determining the useful lives and unit rates for each asset type, an "evidence” based approach has
been taken. For most assets, there is no ready “tradeable” market, and Ccuncils are the major if not only
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

provider of such assets (e.g. local roads and their drainage). In-house technical expertise is available and is
used. The major exceptions are land and buiidings, which are valued externally.

Where a condition review of assets discloses an emror in the quantity of the asset, this will be adjusted as a
priar period adjustment.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with camying amount. These are
included in the income statement.

Land, other than land under roads. is classified as either operational or community in accordance with Part 2
of Chapter 6 of the Local Government Act (1993). This classification is made in Note 9(a).

(n) Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising freehoid bulldings, car parks and blocks of units, are held for
development to generate long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Council, Investment property is
carmed at fair value, which Is based on active market prices, adjusted, If necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location, or condition of the specific asset. If this Information is not avadable, Council uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or discounted cash flow projections, These
valuations are reviewed annually by a member of the Australian Property Institute. Changes in fair values
are recorded in profit and loss as part of other income.

Investment property includes properties that are under construction for future use as investment properties.
These are also carried at fair value unless the fair value cannot yet be refably determined, Where that is the
case, the property will be accounted for at cost until either the fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is complete.

(o) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and senvices provided to the Council prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured and are usually pald within 30 days of
recognition.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cosls Incumed. Barrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilty will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facikty will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed fom the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged.
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a finanaal liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are dassified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs ncurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

(r) Provisions

Pravisions are recognised whan Council has a present legal or constructive cbligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligaticn and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

s 30 June 2015

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outfiow with respect to any one item included in the same class of abligations may be small.

Notes to the nntndd’

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabilty, The
Increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense,

(s} Employee benefits

() Short4term cbligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick
leave expected to be settied within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are recognised in respect of employees’ sanvices up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seitied
The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee
benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

(1) Other Long term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be settled wathin 12
months after the end of the pericd in which the employees render the related service Is recognised in
the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method, Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of senvice. Expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to
maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The cbligations are presented as current liabifties in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, regardiess of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(/1)) Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitlied to benefits on retirement, disabity or death. Councid
contributes to vanous defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

A Rabllity or asset in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised In
the balance sheet, and measured as the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date plus unrecognised actuarial gains (less unrecognised actuarial losses) less the fair value of the
superannuation fund's assets at that date and any unrecognised past service cost. The present value
of the defined benefit cbligation is based on expected future payments which anse from membership
of the fund to the reporting date. calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and pericds of service, However, when this information is not reliably available,
Council accounts for its obligations to defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to
defined contribution plans (ses below).

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme has advised member councils that, as a result of the
glebal financial crisis. it has a significant deficiency of assets over liabilities. As a result, they have
asked for significant increases in contributions to recover that deficiency. Council's share of that
deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has
been recognised in Council's accounts. Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability in note
18 lo reflect the possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to
correct the deficiency.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

(t) Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financal statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.

(u) Land under roads

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB
1051,

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised In accordance with AASB 116 - Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips
and median strips.

(v) Provisions for close down and restoration and for environmental clean-up costs - Tips
and quarries

() Restoration

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demalition of infrastructure and the
removal of residual matenals and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated dose down and
restoration costs are provided for in the accounting pericd when the obligation arising from the related
disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the operation phase, based
on the net present value of estimated future costs. Provisions for close down and restoration costs do
not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from future disturbance. The costs
are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during the life
of the operation to reflect known developments, eg. updated cost estimates and rewisions to the
estimated kves of operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Close down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the
majority of close down and restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations.
Although the ultimate cost to be Incurred is uncertain, Council estimates the respective costs based on
feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and techniques.

The amortisation or ‘unwinding' of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of
provisions is charged to the Income statement in each accounting period. The amortisation of the
discount is shown as a borrowing cost.

Other movements in the provisions for close down and resteration costs, including those resulting from
new disturbance. updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations and revisions to
discount rates are capitalised within property, plant and equipment, These costs are then depreciated
over the lives of the assets to which they relate,

(i) Rahabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of
closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding confinuous rehabiitation work at each
balance sheet date and the cost is charged to the income statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations
cutstanding at the balance sheet date, These costs are charged to the income statement. Movements
In the environmental clean-up provisions are presented as an operating cost. except for the unwinding
of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost. Remediation procedures generally commence
soon after the time the damage, remediation process and estimated remediation costs become known,
but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the remediation
techniques,

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncentan and cost estimates can
vary in response to many factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence
of new restoration techniques or experience at other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can
also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves or production rates. As a result
there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and
envirecnmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes o the financial statements 30 June 2015

(w) Allocation between current and non-current assets and liabilities

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the
time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Council's operational cycle. In the case of
liabilties where Council does not have the uncondttionai right to defer settiement beyond 12 months, such as
vested long senvice |eave, the liability |s dassified as current even if not expected to be settied within the
next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in
the next 12 months.

(x) New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30
June 2015 reporting penicds, NSW Council's assessment of the impact of the new standards and
interpretations relevant to them is set out below.

() AASE 8 Financial Instruments and associated amonding standards

Significant revisions to the classification and measurement of financial assets, reducing the number of
categeries and simplifying the measurement choices, including the removal of impairment testing of
assets measured at fair value, The amortised cost model is available for debt assets meeting both
business model and cash flow characterigtics tests. All investments In equity Instruments using AASE
8 are to be measured at fair value.

Amends measurement rules for financial liabilities that the entity elects to measure at fair value
through profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to changes in the entity's own credit risk are
presanted in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of assets is now based on expected losses in AASE 9 which requires entities to measure:

e the 12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result #om those default events
on the financial instrument that are possibie within 12 months after the reporting date), of full
lifetime

o expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
life of the financial instrument.

The effective date is the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The available-for-sale investments held will be classified as far value through OCI1 and will no longer
be subject to impairment testing. The impairment loss recognised in the current year financial
statements in relation to these statements was Nil

Other impacts on the reported financial position and performance have not yet been determined.

i AASE 15 Revenue from contracts with custormers and associated amending standards

AASBE 15 introduces a five step process for revenue recognition with the core principle of the new
Standard being for entties to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or senices to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services

Accounting policy changes will anse in timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contracts costs and
contracts which contain a financing element

AASE 15 will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that
were not prevously addressed comprehensively (for example. service revenue and contract
modifications) and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements

The effective date is the annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASE 15 may cause changes to the timing and
amount of revenue recorded in the financal statements as well as additional disclosures. The impact
of AASB 15 has not yet been quantified.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

(y) Crown Reserves

Crown Reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Counci. While ownership
of the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and Is
responsible for their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purpeses to which the reserves
are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incumred by
Council and revenues relating the reserves are recognised within Council's Income Statement

Representations from both State and Local Geovernment are being scught to develop a consistent
accounting treatment for Crown Reserves across both tiers of government.
(z) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorty Is included with other receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis, The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as
operating cash flows.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 2(a) FUNCTIONS OR ACTIVITIES

LR

1210
] 1495168 1472

TOTAL ASSETS 1HELD |
(CURRENT & NON-
CURRENT)
Acwal | Acwat
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000 | som
200 3 mm

m
B
74

OPERATING RESULTS FROM | GRANTS INCLUDED i |

ASSETS MAVE BEEN DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTED TO THE FOLLOWING FUNCTIONS / ACTIVITIES
AILS OF THESE FUNCTIONS | ACTIVITIES ARE PROVIDED IN NOTE b)
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 2(b) COMPONENTS OF FUNCTIONS OR ACTIVITIES

The activities relating to the Council's functions and activities reported on in Note 2 (a) are as
follows:

Catchment program

Managing, monitoring and maintaining water quality and reuse, our stormwater and
natural waterways.

Centres and Neighbourhood program

Deveioping, delivering, maintaining and managing our public domain infrastructure,
fadilities and place management

Community and Cultural program

Managing all community services, cemmunity development, community buildings
and events and driving cultural development.

Customer and Community Relations program

Engaging with our community, all media and community relations, branding and
marketing our city and developing and managing all our customer services

Economic Development program
Business sector and economic development
Environmental program

Monitoring and managing our environmental performance, developing environmental
policy and making our community aware of environmental impact,

Foreshore program
Managing all aspects of our fareshore.
Governance and Civic program

Supporting our mayer and coundillers, through council precess and civic events, and
providing guidance on governance to support other areas of council.

Internal Corporate Services program

Developing and managing our information, records and corporate knowledge,
implementing information technology, communications, business, financial and HR
infrastructure and services. Managing our fleet and plant; planning and developing
assets; all project management and administrative support.

Land Use Planning program

Planning, delivering and managing our land and urban design and enhancing and
informing on our heritage.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 2(b) Components of Functions or Activities (continued)
Library program

Delivening all our library services,
Open Space, Sport & Recreation program

Developing, delivering, maintaining and managing all our sports, recreation, outdoor,
open spaces and natural areas infrastructure, services and fadilities.

Organisational Development program

Addressing workforce planning, driving culture and performance, assessing process
efficiency and overseeing all corporate communications.

Paths and Cycleways program
Developing, managing and maintaining our footpaths and cycleways.
Property Portfolio program

Developing, managing and maintaining our portfolio of corporate, commercial and
civic properties,

Regulatory program

Delivering all our regulatory assessments and activities, Including bullding
regulations, environmental regulations, road, parking and footpath enforcement and
animal management.

Risk Management program

Managing all legal services, procurement and intemal auditing, assessing and
managing business continuity. risk and disaster management

Roads program
Managing and maintaining our roads, bridges and retaining walls.
Strategic City program

Providing strategic direction and planning. and manages the reporting on our
corporate performance.

Traffic & Transport program

Managing our transport, traffic and car parking. developing sustainable transport
options.

Waste and Recycling program

Managing our domestic and commercial waste services, educating on and facilitating
recycling and disposal services.
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ITEM 3 (continued)

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 3 INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
015 2014

{$'000) £$'000)
(a) Rates and Annual Charges
Ordinary Rates
Residential 27.3683 26,261
Business 13,959 13,268
Emironm ental Management Lew 6,388 6,166
Total Ordinary Rates 47,73 45,785
Special Rates
Macquarie Park 1,299 1,277
Total Special Rates 1.299 1,217
Annual Charges (pursuant to 496, s496A, 5.4968, 2501 & s611)
Domestic Waste Management Sendces 16,343 .9
Non-Rateable Wasle Management Charges 135 136
Stormwater Management Sendce Charge 1.007 990
Section 611 Charges 121 123
Total Annual Charges 17,606 16,197
Total Rates and Annual Charges 66,641 n‘zu

Councll has used 2013 valuations prowded by the NSW Valuer General In catculating ks rates

(b) User Charges and Fees

User Charges (pursuant to s 502)
Aquatic Centre 5ATt 5.028
Sporis Facliity Rental 673 879
Hall Hire 502 457
Road Restorations 576 1.040
Gutter Crossings 374 7
Commercial Wasle Sendce 1.047 @1
Other 69 46
Total User Charges CXE) B.298
Fees
Regulatory/Statutory Fees 2,691 2,122
$603 Cedificales 171 163
Discretionary
- Parking fees 1171 1,942
~ Emvronmental Planning 1.719 1,808
- Private Works 19 19
« Vacation Care . -
- Home Maintenance & Modfication 104 83
- Other 374 153
Total Fees 6429 5,890
Total User Charges and Fees 1&801 13,988
{c} Interest and Investment Revenue (Losses)
Owerdue Rales & Charges 177 191
Cash, cash equivalents and iImesiments:
- Externally restricled 923 1,033
« Internally restricled . -
- Unrestricted 3673 3,074
Impairmert Losses
- Imestments - -
Premiums recognised on financial mstrument transactions
Amodisation of discounts and premiums:
- Imestments held to maturty 32 33
Total Interest and Investment Revenue 4,811 4,301

ATTACHMENT 6
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 3 Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

20156 2014

{$°000) ($000)
(d) Other Revenues
Far yaus aqustments - nvestment properties 450 180
Rertal iIncome
- nastment Propeety 433 23
- Other Propedy 1.638 1,848
Paking Fines 3741 4 857
Othar Fines S8 42
Ex Graba rates - -
Fusl Tax Cradt 176 .
Matenals Recycling 338 293
Leass - Telscommunications i o
Lagsl Feas Recovenes
- Rates 18 -
- Othar 43 a8
Irsurance Qsims 1594 2
Staff Vehicle Lorses and Other Paymonts 515 544
Eastwood Plaza 65 4
Sundry Sales 22 32
Other 813 611
Total Other Revenue 8,939 8,932

OPERATING CAPITAL

2018 2014 2018 2014

{$'000) {$'000) (§'000) {$000)
(e) Grants
General Purposs (Untied)
Finanoial Assistancs 30038 1618 - -
Persionar Rebete Subsidy - Rates S01 524 - -
Total Genaral Pumos e {Urtied| 3,704 2142 - -
Specific Purpose
Persicner Rebale Subsidy - Damestic Wasle 223 2118 . -
Vacation Cere . . .
Macquane Pank Construction - - 6.000 -
Liteary 250 274 - -
Home Mantenance & Modification T as2 - -
Maadowbonk/Gladeswlle Trafic Study - &6 - -
DEEWR - Apprentrce Rebate Scheme - k) - -
Communily Staft Fundng 271 248 - -
Streel & Trafic Lighting ass 364 - -
Roads To Recovery - - 492 424
RMS Transpon - - 154 1,193
Paks Grants . ] , 7
Warste Education 3 2 - -
Ryda Pamamatts River Walk - 1458 -
Envronments Progects - 63 - -
WHES Incertive Rebele 15 % . -
LRS Supsidy 65 - - -
Othar 154 158 20 282
Tatal Specite Pupose 1,853 1950 2 354 1,806
Total Grants 5,657 4,092 8,364 1,906
Comprising:
-C alth funding 3486 2007 - -
- State funding 2.0m 2085 8354 1,608
« Other funding - - X e ..

5,857 4,082 8,354 1,906
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 3 Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

OPERATING CAPITAL
2016 2014 2015 2014
{$000) ($'000} {$'000) {$'000)

(f) Contributions

Deaveloper Corentutiors (s94)

- Open Space - - 12,689 5179

- Paving . - - -

« Dramacge . . 760 47

« Trafke Facilities - . 2,027 818

« Other 100 e

- Communty Facilities - - 4217 1.860
Volursey Pianning Agraaments - - 3,275 1575
Othar Councils 583 570 - -
Community Facilies - - - .
Commurity Everts 78 43 - -
Other . 43 a7o )
RMS Contnbutions

- Roads & Bridges 305 239 - -

- Other
Buldings & Propery (n Kind) S = = =
Buildings & Propaty (n Kind}- 584
Cuslomen’Reaident Contnbutions
LSL Contrbutions fom other Councils
u94F AMocdable Housing
DWM Bettar Waste and Recycling Fund
Waste Performance Impeovemeant Program
Total Contributions

5~
-

F
i
'

280 - -

1.467 22 608 12,323

# §I'§'3s"

Total Grants & Contributions

5,549 30,969 14,229

2018 04
($:000} ($'000)
(g} Restrictions relating to Grants and Contnbutions
Cariain grants and contnbutions ars cbtained ty Council
on the condiion that they be spent in a specfad manner
Grants and contrdulions recognieed inthe cument
feparting panod which have not been spert 28452 13,852

Less

Grants and cortnbutions recognised in prevous

reparting penods which have been spert inthe

cumrent reporting pericd 15 668 5836
Netincrease/(decrease) in Restricted Grants and

Contributions 13,766 8216
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 4 EXEPNSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2015 2014
(3'000) ($°000)
(a) Employee Benefits & On Costs
Salares and Wages 28,708 28,378
Employee Leave Entitliements 7.817 8541
Superannuation 3,807 3,768
Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,134 1,670
Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) 178 208
Training Costs (excluding ssiaries) 218 211
Cther 278 370
Less: Capitalised Costs (3,701) (3,359;
Total Employee Costs Expensed 38,538 38,789
Number of FTE Employees aa 440
(b) Borrowing Costs
Interest on overdrafts - -
Interest on loans 256 146
Charges on finance leases - -
Discounts recognised on financial
instrument transactions
Amortisation of discounts and premiums
- Imvestments held to maturity
- Remediation
Less: Capitalised Costs
Total Borrowing Costs Expensed 256 146
EEEE O
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 4 Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

2015 2014
($°000) ($'000)
(c) Materials and Contracts
Raw matenals and consumables 1420 607
Contractor and Consultancy Costs 25172 25,049
Audit Fees:
- Audit Senices 77 63
- Other'" - 20
Legal Fees:
- Planning & Development 32 164
- Other S0 509
Operating leases
« Computers - -
Infingement Notice Contract (SEINS) 521 511
Other - -
Less: Capitalised Costs (1.654) {1,333)
Total Materials & Contracts 25619 25,590
" During the year the fllowing fees were paid or payable for sendces
provided by the Council's auditor - Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC)
(i) Audit and other assurance senices
Audit and review of inancial statements 57 63
Other assurance senices.
- Audit of regulatory retums - -
~ Due diligence senices - -
Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 57 63

(ii) Taxation sernvces
Tax complance senices - -

Total remuneration for taxation services - >

(iiiy Other Senices
Advice on Financial Projections 20 20
Attendance of Council meetings - X

Total remuneration for other services 20 20

Total remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers 77 83
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 4 Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

205 2014 2015 2014

(d) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment {$'000) ($'000) {$°000) {$'000)
Flant end Eguipment 2463 2801
OMce Equipmant 1,075 1.005
Fumiture & Fittings 212 n7
Froparty Plant and Equipmesnt Leased - -
Land Improvements [Deprecighle) 517 868
Eulldings - Specigised 850 850

- Non-specialised 874 92%
Othar Structures 1,532 2242
Infastructue

- Roads, Bndoes and Footpaths 5456 6,060

- Slomwater Drainags 1,507 1507
Othar Assels

- Hertaga Callections - -

- Library Books 561 S04
Total Depreciation Casts 14 883 16 689
Less Copitalised Costs/imparment fevers als {105) {130y
Total Depreciation and Total Impairment 14,773 16,559 - -
* Refer 10 Mot 9, Revewed Uit Rates for 201312
(e) Other Expenses 2016 2014

($°000) ($:000}
Other expenses forthe yeer

ncluds the rllomng -

Far Velus tecrements - hvestment Properties - -
Bad & Doutttl Datts 6" 100
Mayord Fes 61 59
Councibors' Fees 258 67
Counoiors’ incl Mayor] Expenses ar 01
Efection Costs {excl Employee Costs) 128 -
Interest on Retundable Deposits 352 85
Irsuance 42 974
Irs Lrance - Statemde Mutual Provsion - -
Strest Lighting 1,860 2,186
Communications Costs 144 203
Contnbution to Fire Cortrol 1538 1516
Contritution to Doept of Ftarming pob] 245
Contntutions 4 Conations - Community Grards 519 726
Waste Development Tax 3,220 3028
Mennbership Faas 143 g9
Valuabion Fees 41 187
Elecincty & Hasbng 1.348 1498
Waler Rtes 39 440
Bank Foas & Charges 195 222
Propary Leasa Costs 4 ]
Postage & Couter Costs 323 266
Advartising 460 4z
Operating Legses - -
Parking Inningemert Collecton - .
Remadation - -
Grean Waste Colaction Charges - -
Othar Exponses 181 126
Less Capialised Costs {(11) _(_Q_
Total Other Expenses From Continuing Operations 12,365 12,687
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 5 GAIN OR LOSS FROM THE DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
OF STRATUM LAND

Proceeds from disposal

Less: Carrying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
OF OPERATIONAL LAND

Proceeds from disposal

Less: Camying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
OF COMMUNITY LAND

Proceeds from disposal

Less: Carrying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
OF PROPERTY

Proceeds from disposal

Less: Camying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Preceeds from disposal

Less: Camying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
REAL ESTATE ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Proceeds from sales

Less: Cost of sales

Gain (or loss) on disposal

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
OFFICE EQUIPMENT

Preceeds from disposal

Less: Carrying amount of assets sold
Gain (or loss) on disposal

2015
(S'000)

[T

2,392
(2,293)

(2)

(2)

2014
($'000)

172 i

172

1,289
(1,121)

894 2

(910)
(16)

(24)
(24)

"' This includes the sale of land under roads, which is Community Land.

“1 This includes the net proceeds fom the sale of the asset (3910k) less the commission
on sale ($16k). This asset was revalued as at 30 June 2013
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE S Gain or Loss from the disposal of assets (continued)
2015 2014
(5'000) (§'000)

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF

LIBRARY BOOKS

Proceeds from disposal - -
Less: Camying amount of assets sold s -
Gain (or loss) on disposal - -

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF
RBF - ROAD PAVEMENTS
Proceeds from disposal - -

Less: Carmrying value of Works in Progress - (10)
Gain (or loss) on disposal - (10}

GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF

RBF - FOOTPATHS & CYCLEWAYS

Preceeds from disposal - -
Less: Carrying value of Works In Progress - (72)
Gain (or loss) on disposal - (72)
GAIN {OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF

WORKS IN PROGRESS

Preceeds from disposal - -
Less: Camying value of Works in Progress - (203)
Gain (or loss) on disposal - (203)
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Proceeds from disposal 1,011 305
Less: Camying value of Financial assets (999) (2.991)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 12 44
NET GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL

OF ASSETS 915 64

“ This represents the write off of the costs incumed for the Redevelopment of the Civic Centre
Precinct, as resolved by Council in September 2012,

W This does not include investments that are rolled over, in full. with the same ADL
Gross amount including roled over investments:

Proceeds fom disposal CF 18,761 32.004
Less: Canying value of Financial assets 6 (18,749) (31,880)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 12 44
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 6{a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2015 2014

Notes ($'000) ($'000)
Cash at bank and on hand 567 947
Deposits at call '/ 13,738 14,846
14,305 15,783

‘"' Includes term deposits with @ term of less than 3 months

a5 e
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 6{b) INVESTMENTS

The follovdng inancial assets are held as investments:
2015 2014

Current  Non-Cument Current  Non-Current

($°000) (5'000) ($'000) ($°000)
Financial Assets at Fair Vaiue

through Profit and Loss - - - -

Held to Maturity Investments 80,704 32,743 51,500 38,665
Available for Sale Financial Assets - - - -
Total 90,704 32,743 51,500 38,665

Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss

At beginning of year - - - -
Revaluation to Income statement - - = -
Additions - - = =
Disposals (Sale/Redemption) - - - .
Reclassification

At end of year - = 2 T

Held for Trading:
-Managed funds - - -
-CDOs
-FRNs
- Listed equity securities
TOTAL - - - -

Held to Maturity Investments

At beginning of year 51,500 38,665 46450 29,622
Amortisation of discounts & premiums - 32 - 33
Additions 33,250 18,750 28,050 18,000
Disposals (17,750) (899) (28.000) (2,980)
Impairment - - - -
Transfer to Current 23,704 (23,704) 6.000 (6,000)
At end of year 90,704 32,744 51,500 389,665

Comprising of:
-CDOs - - - =
- FRNs 8,954 19,747 - 17,921
- Fixed Bonds - 1,886 - 1,904
- Term Deposits @ 1,750 11,000 51,500 18,750
TOTAL 90,704 32,743 51,500 38,665

'“ Does not include term deposits with a term of less than 3 months
Il EE &5 B
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 6{c) RESTRICTED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

2015 2014
Current No rrent Current No rent
($'000) (§'000) ($°000) (5°000)
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments 105,009 32,743 67,293 38,665
Extemal restrictions 27,000 32,743 11,187 32,926
Intemal restrictions 73,214 . 50,061 5,739
Unrestricted 4,785 - 6,045 -
Total 105,009 32,743 67,293 38,665

Opening  Transfers Transfers Closing

Balance To From Balance
30 June 2014 Restriction Restriction 30 June 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Extermnal Restrictions
Included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended loans
RTA Advances
Self-hsurance Claims
Other
Other
Developer Contributions (A) 35,548 22977 (15,127) 43,398
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants (B) 1.079 6.357 (767) 6,668
Demestic Waste Management (C) 4912 19.063 {17,235) 5,740
Stomwater Management 1.215 1.010 (1,476) 749
Affordable Housing Contribution - 139 - 139
LIRS - 1.346 - 1,346
Macquane Park Special Rate 1.130 1.300 (1,283) 1,147
Extemal Works Drainage Contrbutions 229 o8 228 555
Total External Restrictions 44,113 51,200 (35,660) 59,743
Total Restricted Grants and Contributions 36,856 29,432 (15,666) 50,622
for Note 3 (g) comparisons
Il &5 B
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 6{c) Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Opening  Transers Translers Closing

Balance To From Balance
30 June 2014 Restriction Restriction 30 June 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Internal Restrictions
Plant Replacement Reserve 2,462 2,168 (1,756) 2,874
Employee Leave Entitliements 2,998 520 (1,082) 2,456
hcomplete/Carry Over Works and Projects 2,721 873 (2,721) 873
Refundable Deposits 8,974 725 - 9,689
Asset Replacement Resene 15,362 20,044 (2,078) 33,328
Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre 5685 3,982 (4.429) 138
Investment Property Resene 16,403 - (1,998) 14,405
Ciic Centre Precinct Redevelopment Resernve 822 - 125 947
Financial Security Resene 3,438 - - 3,428
hsurance Fluctuation Resene 563 188 - 751
Fit for the Future Reserve - 3,000 (288) 2712
Sale of Roads Reserve - 889 (889) -
Risk Rebate Resene 40 68 (29) 79
Other 1,432 382 (300) 1,514
Total Intemal Restrictions 55,800 32,839 (15,425) 73,214
Total Restrictions 99,913 84,129 (51,085) 132,957

(A) Dewlopment contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of senices and amenities

in accordance with contributions plans and voluntary planning agreements (VPAs(See separate Note 17).
(B) Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained.
(C) Domestic Waste Management funds are extemally restricted assets which must be applied

for the purposes for which they wers raised.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 7 RECEIVABLES

2015 2014
Purpose Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
($°000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Rates and Annual Charges 1401 934 1,246 831
Rates Interest & Extra Charges 185 130 197 131
User Charges & Fees
Environmental & Health 400 - 410 -
Restorations 130 - 354 -
Recreational Facilties 241 . 254 -
Property & Infastructure Works Gl - 22 -
Home Modification Senice 8 - 15 -
Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre 40 - 103 -
Interest on Investments 1,332 - 1,285 -
Contnbutions to Works 220 - 135 -
Govemment Grants & Subsidies 1.24 - 2,382 -
Commercial Waste 363 - 354 -
GST 1.180 - 403 -
Asset Sales 1,640 - - -
Workers Compensation 5 - 17 -
Staff Payments - - - -
Voluntary Planning Agreement - - - -
Fines - - 328 -
Other 72 - 454 -
Total' 8,584 1,084 7,970 962
Less: Provision for Doubtiul Debts
- Rates and Annual Charges - - - -
- Interest and extra charges
- User Charges and Fees 270 - 257 -
- Government Grants & Subsidies - - - -
8,314 1,084 7,713 962

EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES (Included Above)

Demestic Waste Management™ - . “ -

TOTAL RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES - - - -
UNRESTRICTED RECEIVABLES 8314 1,064 7,713 962
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 8,314 1,064 7.713 962

) Total refers to Note 15
“' Receivables for Domestic Waste are included in the transfers toffrom the cash resenve, and if shown here
wioukd result in a duplication of the restriction.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 7 Receivables (continued)

Rates and Annual Charges
Rates are secured by underlying properties.
Interest is charged on overdue rates at 8.5% (2014 9.0%). Rates are due for payment on 31 August,
30 November, 28 February and 31 May In each financial year, Overdue rates are these not paid
within 1 day of the due date. The amount of the overdue debts upon which interest is charged is
$2,335,000 (2014 $2,077,000)

User Charges and Fees
User charges and fees are unsecured, The credit risk for this class of debtor Is 100% of the carrying
value. A provision for doubtful debts in respect of the class of debtor has already been provided in
an amount of $270,000.

Govemnment Grants

Government grants and subsidies (subject to terms and conditions of the relevant agreement) have
been guaranteed.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 8 INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

2015 2014

Current Non-Current Cument Non-Current

(5'000) {$'000) ($'000) ($°000)
(a) Inventonies
Real Estate - -
Stores and Matenals (refer "’ below) 618 - 489 -
Other - - - -
Total Inventories 618 - 489 -

Note: The kllowing assets although disclosed as cumrent, are not expected to be realised within the next
12 months

(b) Inventories not expected to be

realised within the next 12 months" 329 - 267 -
(c) Other Assets

Prepayments 798 - 315 -
Total Other Assets 798 - 315 -

EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS
NIL

"' This represents a stockpile of material that is held at Porters Creek, made from recycled building matenials
and it will take more than 12 months for this to be used.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 10(a) PAYABLES, BORROWINGS & PROVISIONS

2015 2014
Current  Non-Current Current Non-Current
(s'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($°000)

Payables

Goods and Senices 6.201 - 7,495 -
Payments Received in Advance 278 - 281 -
Payments received in advance - Rates 340 - 284 -
Accrued Expenses 882 - 1,045 -
Adwnces - - - -
Interest Expenses 53 - 53 -
Deposits and Retentions 9,996 - 8,975 -
Staff Taxatlon Payments - - - -
Staff Salaries & Wages - - 318 -
Trust Account Deposits -

Domestic Waste 1.35 - 695 -
Other Contributions - - - -
Other 25 - 58 -
Total Payables 19.229 - 19,206 -
Current Payables not expected to be

settied within the next 12 months 7.747 - 6,956

Borrowings

Bank Overdraft - - - -
Loans - secured ' 993 5,241 793 4,822
Loans - unsecured

Govemment Advances

Ratepayers advances

Finance lease Hability - - - -
Deferred payment llabiiities

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities 993 5.241 793 4,822
Provisions®!

Annual & Other Accrued Leave 3.302 - 3,350 -
Sick Leaw 198 - 201 -
Long Senice Leawe 7.368 156 6,763 136
Employee Leave Entitlements On Costs - - - -
Site Remediation (see Note 26) - - - -
Self nsurance Liabilities - - - -
Other Employee Provisions - - - -
Total Provisions 10,868 156 10,314 136
Current provisions not expected to be

settied within the next 12 months 5,863 - 5,431 -
Liabllities relating to restricted assets

Domestic Waste Management - - - b2
Total restricted labllities . = - -
Liabdities relating to unrestricted assets 31.090 5,397 30,312 4,958
Total 31,090 5,397 30,312 4,958
' Loans are secured by the rating income of Council

“Ivested ELE is all carmed as a cument provision

Il EE &5 e
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 10{(b) DESCRIPTION AND MOVEMENTS IN PROVISIONS

Opening Increase in Re- Clasing

Balance Provision Payments Measurement Balance
Class of Provision (§'000) (5°000) (5'000) ($'000) ($°000)
Annual & Other Accrued Leave 3,350 2,330 2,378 - 3,302
Sick Leave 201 1,107 1,110 - 198
Long Senice Leave 6,999 1.566 941 - 7.524
Total 10,450 5,003 4,429 - 11,024
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 11 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING RESULT TO NET CASH MOVEMENT
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Assets

Notes 2015 2014
($°000) ($°000)
Total Cash and Cash Equialents 6{a) 14,305 15,793
Less: Bank Owerdraft 10 - -
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flow 14,305 15,793
(b) Reconciliation of net Operating Result to Cash
Provided from Operating Activities
2015 2014
($'000) ($°000)
Net Operating Result rom Income Statement 41,003 15,571
Add: Depreciation and mpaiment 4 14,778 16,558
Impairment of investments 3 - -
Increase in provision for doubtful debts 7 13 72
Increase in provision for leave entitlements 10 574 417
Increase in Other Provsions 10 - -
Decrease in receivables 7 - -
Decrease in imentories 8 - -
Decrease In other current assets 8 - 73
Increase in payables 10 - 3,282
Increase in accrued interest payable 10 - 52
Increase in cther current liabilities 10 1,708 1,734
Decrements from resaluations 4 - -
Loss on sale of asssats 5 - -
Fair value adjustments to imnvestment property 4 - -
Amortisation of discounts & premiums recognised 3.4 - -
Other 3.4 - -
Less:
Decrease in provsion for doubtful debts 7 - -
Decrease In employee leave entitlements 10 - -
Decrease in Other Provsions 10 - -
Increase in recehvables 7 (716) (2,046)
Increase in imnventories 8 {(129) (42)
Increase in other current assets 8 (483) -
Decrease in payables 10 (623) -
Decrease in accrued interest payable 10 - -
Decrease in other current liabilities 10 - -
Reversal of prevous revaluation decrements -
Non cash contrbutions and dedications -
Gain on sale of Assets 5 (915) (64)
Fair value adjustments to financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 6 - -
Fair value adjustments to investment properties 3 (450) (180)
Amontisation of discounts & premiums recognised 3 (32) (33)
Non Cash Capital Grants & Contributions 3 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 54,723 35,305
Il EE 5 e
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 11 Reconciliation of Operating Result to Net Cash Movement from
Operating Activities (continued)

2015 2014
($'000) ($'000)
{c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of Plant & Equipment

by means of finance leases - -
S5.94 contributions in kind - -
Dedications = =

(d) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was aailable at bafance date
to the following lines of credit:

Bank Owerdrafts Facility = 2
Corporate credit cards 40 45
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE12 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2015 2014
{$'000) ($'000)
(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but
not recognised In the financial statements as liabilities:
Buildings - -
Plant & Equipment - -
Construction Sendces 1,269 -
Architectural Senices - Surf Attraction - 250
LED Upgrade 113
Parks Restorations 138 -
Traffic Signal Instaliation - 1)
Seawall Improvements 208
Streat Furniture 100
Streetscape Upgrade 60
Granite Paving 375 21
Stormwater/Drainage 100 3
Total 2,361 561

These expenditures are payable

- Not later than one year 2,361 561
- Later than one year and not later than § years - -

- Later than 5 years - -
Total 2,361 561

(b) Finance lease commitments

Commitments under finance leases at the reporting date

are payable as follows:

- Not later than one year . -
- Later than one year and not later than 5 years - -
- Laterthan 5 years - -
Total - -

Minimum lease payments - N
Less: future finance charge - -

Lease liability - -
Representing lease |abilities:

- Current - -
- Non-Current = =
Total - x
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 12 Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

2015 2014
($'000) ($°000)

(c) Non<cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
at 30 June 2015 but not recognised in the fnancial
statements are payable as follows:

- Not later than one year

- Later than one year and not |ater than 5 years

- Later than 5 years

Total

(d) Repairs and maintenance: investment property

Contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance - -
Total - -
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 13 STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES - CONSOLIDATED

RESULTS
Current
Year
Bench
Amounts Indicators 2014 2013 smark
($'000)
1. Operating performance
Total continuing operating revenue’ excluding capital
grants and contributions — operating expenses 3679 8.53% 1.15%  -6.60% > 0.00%
Tolal continuing operating revenue' excluding capital 101,734
granls and condributions
2. Own source operating revenue
Total continuing operating revenue' excluding all
grants and condributions 94,502 TI44%  8204%  B646% > 60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue' inclusive of all 132,69
grants and contributions
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Curren! assels Jese all extemal restrictions 87,410 5.03x 3.50x 3.03x > 15x
Current Babililies less specific purpose lisoillies 17,381
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operaling resulls’ before capital excluding interest and
depreciationimpairment’amedisation (EBITDA) 23,713 20 86x 27 26x 28.29x >
Principal repayments {Fom the stalement of cash 1,137
flowis ) + borrewing interes! costs (fom the income
statement)
5. Rates and Annual Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates and Annual Charges Oulstanding 2,660 3.84% 3.66% 3.93% <5.00%
Rates and Annuasl Charges Collectible 69,241

6. Cash expens cover ratio

Current year's cash, cash equivalents - Term Deposis  x 12 107,056 x 12 1568 1348 10.00 >3
Payments fom cash few of operating and financing 81,933 menths  menths  months months
actdties

'Excludes falr value adjustments, reversal of revaluation decrements, net gainloss on sale of assets and net
sharedoss of interests in joint ventures

Il EE F EEE
Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstap 48 . Clty Of dee

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 49

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2015 2014
($'000) ($'000)
At Fair Value
Opening balance at July 1 2014 2,800 2,620
Acquisitions 1,150
Transferred from Note 9 101,228
Clasgsified as held for disposals -
Net gain (loss) fom fair value adustment 450 180
Transfer (to) from inventones and other occupied property -
Closing Balance at 30 June 2015 105,628 2,800
(a) Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss for Investment Property
Rental Income 3{d) 483 239
Net gain (loss) from fair value adustment 3({d) 450 180
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income {137) (20)
Total 796 358
(b) Valuation Basis
The basis of the valuation of investment properties is at fir alue being the
amounts for which the properties could be exchanged between wdlling parties in an
arm's length transaction, based on cument prices in an active market for similar
properties in the same location and condtion subject to similar leases, The May
2015 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by Scott
Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd, @ member of the Australian Property Institute,
(c) Contractual obligations
Refer to Note 12 for disclosure of any contractual obligations to purchase,
construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or
enhancements.
(d) Leasing Arrangements
The investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease payments recehable on leases of
investment properties are as follows.
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of investment
properties not recognised in the fnancial statements are receivable as ollows.
- Not |ater than one year 383 240
- Later than one year and not |ater than 5 years 685 492
- Later than 5 years 253 16
Total 1,321 748

Refer to note 27 Fair value measurement for information regarding the fair value of investment
properties held.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price nisk, credit nisk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Council's overall nsk management program focuses on the unpredictabdity of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adwerse effects on the financial performance of the Council,

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
cumrency risk.

Financial isk management is camed out by the Finance Unit under policies approved by the Council.
Council held the Pllowing financial instruments at balance date:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2015 2014 2015 2014
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,305 15,793 14,305 15,782
Receivables 9,378 8,675 9,378 8,675
Financial assets at fair value
through proit or loss - - - -
Avaiable-for-sale fnancial assets - - = =
Held-to-maturity investments 123,447 90,165 123,714 90,529
147,130 114,633 147,397 114,887
Financial liabilities
Payables 19,229 19,205 19,229 18,205
Bomrowings 6,224 5,615 5,811 2880 M
25,463 24,620 25,040 22,094

Note:

Refer to Note 27 for fair value information,

"' The fair walue represents the Present Value of the total payments (principal and interest) for the remaining
term of the loans, with the amount of interest estimated for those loans with variable rates.
discounted by the Bond rates used for Employee Leave Entitiement discounting,

Il 5 EmE
Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstap 50 . C]ty Of- dec

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
(@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 51

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 15  Financiai Risk Management (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Availablefor-sale financial assets
Held<4o-maturity investments

Council's objective is to maximise its retum on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and presening capital. The Finance Unit manages the cash and investments portfolio with the
assistance of independent investment advisers. Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local
Government Act and Minister's Order, The policy Is regulany reviewed by Council and an Investment Report
provided to Council monthly setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio.

The risk associated with investments held are:

« Pnce nsk —the risk that the capital value of investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices,
whether these changes are caused by factors specific to indiidual financial instruments or their issuers or
factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

« Interest rate sk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns

« Credit nsk - the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument
resulting in a inancial loss to Council.

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and anly purchasing imestments with high credit
ratings or capital guarantees. Council also seeks advce fom its independent advsers before placing any cash
and investments.

The impact on result for the year and equity of 2 reasonably possible movement in the price of investments held
15 shown below. The reasonably possible movement was determined based on histenca! movements and
economic condtions in place at the reporting date.

30/06/2015  30/06/2014
§'000 $'000

Estimated Impact of a 10%” movement in pdce of investments
- Equity - -
= Income statement - -
Estimated Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates on cash
and investments.
- Equity 1,378 1,060
= Income statement 1,378 1,060

Note:

? sensitivity percentages based on management's expectation of future possible market movements. (Price
movements calculated on investments subject to fair value adustments. Interest rate movements calculated on
cash, cash equivalents, managed funds, and FRNs ) Recent market velatility has seen larger market
movements for certain types of investments.

Il EEE B EmE
Lifestyle and opportunity & your doorstap 51 . Clty Of dee

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
(@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 52

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 15 Financiai Risk Management (continued)

(b) Receivables

Council's major recenables comprise rates and annual charges and user charges and fees. The major nisk
associated with these receivables is credit nsk — the risk that the debts may not be repaid. Council manages
this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery policies.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Counclil to recover these debts as a
secured charge over the fand - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge
interest on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages payment

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific
industry sectors and/or regions,

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful recehables as required.
There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms
The profile of the Council's recelvables credit nsk at balance date follows:

Percentage of Ratesand Annual Charges 2015 2014
- Curmrent 63% 58%

- Overdue Debts 37% 41%
Analysis of overdue debts $'000 $'000
Less than 1 year 1,672 1,430
1to 2 years 458 434
2t0 5 years 425 413
Greater than 5 years a5 128

7 2,660 2,405

Percentage of Other Receivables 2015 2014
- Current 92% B81%

- Overdue Debts 8% 19%
Analysis of overdue debts $000 $'000
0 - 30 days overdue 6,458 5316
31 - 60 days overdue 88 325
61 - 90 days overdue 24 25
91+ days overdue 417 m_l

7 6,988 6,527

2015 2014

(ii) Movement in Provision for
Impairment for Receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year 257 185
Plus: New provsions recognised during the year 80 100
Less: Amounts already provded for & written off (67) (28)
Balance at the end of the year 270 257

Il EE F EEE
Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstap 52 . Clty Of dee

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
I._lfestyle and opportunity
@ your doorstep Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 53

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 15 Financiai Risk Management (continued)

Borrowings

Payables and borowings are both subject te liquidity risk — that is the sk that insuficient Linds may be on
hand to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due. Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash
flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms can be extended
and overdraft faciities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of Council's Payables and Borrowings are set out in the maturity table

below.
2015 Due Within Due Between Due After Total Carrying
$'000 1Year 1and 5 Years 5 Years Contractual Values
Cash Flows
Payables 19,229 - - 18,229 19,229
Borrowings 1,183 4075 1,667 6,935 Y 6.234
20,422 4,075 1,667 26,164 25483
2014 Due Within Due Between Due After Total Carrying
$'000 1 Year 1and 5 Years 5Years Contractual Values
Cash Flows
Payables 19,205 - - 19,205 19,205
Borrowings 935 4,144 1,378 6,517 ) 5615
20,200 4,144 1,378 25,722 24,520

Bomowangs are also subject to interest rate nsk ~ the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
afiect Linding costs. The Finance Unit regularty reviews interest rate movements to detemine if it would be
advantageous to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio,

The follovang interest rates were applicable to Councd's bomowings at balance date:

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Weighted Weighted
average average
interest rate Balance interestrate Balance
% $°000 % $'000
Overdrat N/A - N/A -
Bank Loans - Variable ©°! 3.06% 3,769 341% 4,415
Bank Loans — Fixed 5.07% 2465 5.24% 1,200
6,234 5,615

Note:

) This represents the total payments (principal and interest) for the remaining term of the loans,
with the amount of interest estimated for those loans with variable rates.

) The interest rate risk applicable to Vanable Rate Bank Loans is not considered significant,

Refer to note 27 for Fair Value information
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 16 MATERIAL BUDGET VARIATIONS

Council's onginal budget was incorporated as part of the 2014-2018 Delivery Plan adopted by the
Council on 24 June 2014,

Whilst the Income Statement included in this General Pumpose Financial Report must disclose the original
budget adopted by Council, the Local Govemment Act requires Council to review its enginal budget cn a
quarterly basis, sothat it is able to manage the vanious vanations between actuals and budget that invariably
occur throughout the year.

I accordance with section 407 of the Local Government Act 1893, variations to Council's budget are reported
to Council on a quarterdy basis as part of the Management Plan Implementation Report. These documents
can be viewed on Council's website at waw.ryde nsw.gov.au

This Note sets out the details of material variations between the original budget and actual results

for the Income Statement. Material fawourable (F) and unfavourable (U) vanances represent amounts
of 10% or more of the budgeted amount, or if considered appropriate to comment.

Revenues
Interest and Investment Revenue $1,464K (44%) (F)
Council received interest revenue of $4.811k which was above the original budget by $1 464k (44%).
Whilst Interest rates have declined slightly, they flattened out for the remainder of the year.. With higher than
expected Section 94 contributions, Council has received additiona! interest income, improving Council's

operating result. These Lunds are not usable by Council for normai operations as Council Is required to
restrict them, with the funds only be used for construction of new works under the Section 94 plan.

Other Revenues $1,878K (27%) (F)

Council received other revenues of $8,930k which was above the onginal budget by $1.878k {27%)

The most significant increase is an unbudgeted Fair Value adustment for Council's ivestment Properties,
where the Accumulated Depreciation on the assets were written back to the Income Statement, as they were
derecognised as Non-Cument Assets and recognised as Imestment Properties, folloving a resolution of
Council. Four ofthe properties are either in the process of being developed or in the preliminary stages of
development, and will be funded SOV50 by extemal loans and from the Investment Property Resene. This is to
assist in reducing Council's refiance on rating income.

Other items Include: Private Works $0.16m, Insurance Claims $0,16m, Fuel Tax Rebate $0.13m, Porters
Creek Materal Sales $0.10m, Regulated Parking $0.40m, Budding and Land Use Enforcement S0.47m.

Grants & Contributions provided for operating purposes $369K (6%) (F)

Council received other revenues of $5,932k which was above the onginal budget by $36% (6%).
above

The favourable result relates to the Federal Financial Assistance Grant that was greater than the amount
budget by $0.13m.

Council also received a grant from the Better Waste and Recycling Fund for $0.26m, which was not budgeted.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 16 Material Budget Variations (continued)

Grants & Contributions provided for capital purposes $30,535K (7202%) (F)
Council received capital income of $30,95% which was above the oniginal budget by $30,535k (7202%).

Council only budgets as part of its original budget for known grants and contributions towards capital works. it
does not budget for Section 94 contnbutions, as these vary greatly, Council had, until twe years ago, only
received on average $1.5 million per annum.

This year Council received $2,64m for Voluntary Planning Agreements, contributions towards construction
works on sportsgrounds i the amount of $0.37m. a contribution for Affordable Housing of $0.14m, a grant for
the construction of open space in Macquarie Park of $6 00m, a grant for the construction of the Pamamatta
River Walkway of $1.44m, unding from RMS in the amount of $0.35m and Section 84 contributions of
$19.77m.

Expenses
Employee Benefits and Oncosts  -$3,128K (-7%) (F)
Council incurred employee costs of $38,538k which was below the onginal budget by -$3,128k (-7%).
Council as part ofits Special Rating Variation application, identified a number of vacant positions, that were to
be removed from the organisaticnal structure of Council. This was due to commence 1 July 2015, to coincide
with the commencement of the SRV funding, but it was done as part of the September 2014 Quartedy Review,
with the savngs of $1.5m being recognised at that review.

In addition to that Council has alsc saved on Casuals $0.27m, Temporary Staff $0.25m, Training $0.20m,
Workers Compensation Insurance $0.58m, Fringe Benefits Tax (FET) $0.10m.

Other Expenses -§4,359K (-25%) (F)

Council paid other expenses of $12,865k which was below the original budget by -$4 359k (-25%).

The budgeted savings are due to, Insurances Premiums $0.40m (transferred to a selffunded insurance
reserve), [T Licence Costs $0.19m, Street Lighting $0.45m, Utilities - Power $0.51m, Waste Development Tax

$0.65m, Water Rates S0.18m, Strata Fees $0.07m, Contributions $0.28m, Carbon Tax $0.33m (removed at
September Cuarterly Review).
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 17 STATEMENT OF DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the fin:

NOTE 18 CONTINGENCIES

The Itlowing assets and liabilities do not qualily for recognition in the Balance Sheet bul knowfedge of those items is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report In making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of
SCAICe [eSOUrces

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1 Guarantees
(i) Defined Benefits Superannuation Contribution Plans

The Local Govemment Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) is a defined benefit plan that has
been deemed to be a8 “‘multi-employer knd” & purposes of AASB1168. As such Il has an exemption fom
many of the reporting requiremants assoclated with AASE119.

The expected contributions to the Scheme by Council for the next amnmual reporting period is $31,837,

The implication foe Council is that additional contributions are estimated to remain In place untii 30 June
2016 ($342,0509 p.a.).

The amount of employ er contributions 1o the delned benefit section of the Fund and recognised as an
axpansa for the year ending 30 June 2015 was $385, 114, The last valuation of the Fund was pecformed by
Mr Martin Stevenson BSc, FIA, FIAA on 20th February 2013,

{1) Statewide Limited

Councll 15 a of Statewide Mutual, & mutus pool sch peovding llabdity insurance to Local
Government, Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or linbllitios of the fand
depandng on its past performance. Council's share of the Net Assets or Labllities reflects Council's
contributions to the pool and the result of Insurance clakms within each of the ind years, The tture
raalisation and inalisation of clalms Incurred but not reportad to 30 June 2015 may resull In ture kabtlities
or beneits as a result of past events that Councll will be required to kmd or share In respectively,

(i) StateCover Limited

Council is & member of StateCowesr Mutual Limited and holds a parly paid share in the entity. StateCowr
15 & company providing workers compenssation insuranc e cover Lo the NSW Local Government hidustry and
speciiculy Council. Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the

oresion of the Company's capiial base o a unun oﬂho Carp-vy“s past perfomance and/or claims

expadonce of ns o result of sy In Cpuir ts of APRA. Thuse fulure equity
contributions woukd be required to m-lnt-!n the Company's el of Net Assets In accordance with its
Licance Requiramants.

2 Remediation Works

@) Old landfill sites

The Coamcil has a number of old landfill sites that were used for the purp of dsposat of o stic and
other waste, which hme since bean conwsted to playing fekis. No llabllity arlses from any potential
toxicity or subterranean leakage, but there will be ongoing remedation works that may be required fom
time to tme to reinstate the playing surfaces, due to subsidence ollowing further setiing of the waste
within the landhill.

Councll has not, s yet, been able to reliably detorming the quanturm of iatality for this kiture works, ot
has estimated that it could cost approximatety $200, 000 per annum,
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 18 Contingencies (continued)
ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
{1} Infringement Notices/Fines

Fines & penalty income. the result of Councll Issuing Infringement Notices Is followed up and collected by
the Infringem ent Processing Bureau. Counci's Revenue Recognition policy for such income is 1o account
for It as revenue on receipt. Accordingly, at Year End. there is a potential asset due to Counca
represerting issued but unpaid infingement Nalices. Due 10 1he limied information awsilable on the siatus,
value and duration of cutstandng Netices, Councll s unable 1o determine the value of cutstanding income.

(i} Pedostrian Bridge and Tunnel, Top Ryde

Council, as parl of the approval of a Development Application for the Top Ryde City Shopping Centre
entered into an agreemert with the owners and developers, Bewliesta Pty Lid, where a monelary
conlribution was paid for the purchase of a Lract of land at the front of Councils Administration Centre, 1
Devin St, Ryde. Also one of the condiions of the Development Application was a long-ierm lease of 49
years, with a 50 year option, between Councii and the Developers, where Council leased the sirspace in
which a number of assets were to be constructed.

The assets consisted of,

Two pedestrian bridges across Devin Street.
The tunnels info the Top Ryde City Shopping Cenire, plus the tunnels lowards Ihe Chvic Centre site,

These represent a contingent assets {hat wil become Councifs assels af the end of the lease.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

NOTE 18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Council has no interests in joint ventures or associates.

NOTE20 REVALUATION RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

2016 2014

($000) ($000)
(a) Retained earnings
Maosmerts in retainad samings were as illows
Al begnning of year 1742772 1725369
Adjustment to comact prcr years arors (Nets 20 {d)) - -
Nat operating esult brihe yaar 41003 15,571
Al end ot yaar 1.982.175 1.740.940
) Revaluation reserves
Infrastructurs, propaty, plant and squipmant revaluation resens 41630 608,329
Avalable-lrsale mesiments rovaudion resecn
Total assets 679801 603,324
Movements:
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
At bagnning of year e 326 260,507
Fsvalpation - gross 58908 3:.023
Adustment to camect pace years enors (Note 20 (d) (6.434) -
Degrocigion Inans far - gross 18.001 21,762
Al end of yoar £78.801 608,326
Availablefor-safe investiments revaluation reserve
Al baginning of year
Revaluation - gross
Trars¥er to met peodt - gross
Al end of yuar B -
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves
(1) infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The intastructure, property, plart and equipmant ressuation resone
15 used to record ncraments and aecremants on the evslustion of
non-cument assets
(¢) Correction of errorsin previous years
White on of previcusly excluded assets - Other Structures Parks . 1,822
Cormact revalustion amourt for asset wite ons/offs FY 2014 (3.752) -
Propartiss duplicatad betwesn nfastructure Assets and mestmant Froperbas (Z.882) -

(6434) 1,832
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 21 RESULTS BY FUND

Council has only one consclidated fund.

NOTE 22 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2015 2014

($°000) ($'000)
Operational Land - -
Buildings - "
Total = =

Refer to note 27 for fair value measurement Information,

NOTE 23 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

There has been no events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date that directly affect the results for the
20142015 Finandial Year, the following two events, that either happened before the Balance Date, will affect
Council's ongoing financial statements and are significant to require disclosure.

Special Rating Variation

Council applied for an increase in its rating base through a Special Rating Variation (SRV) to the
Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal (IPART). The applicaticn was for a 7%, cumulative increase
over four years, with a total accumutated increase of 31.8%, including rate pegging estimated at 3% per
annum

The application was approved by IPART and the Minister on 19 May 2015, and takes effect from 1 Jul 2015,
Because of this approval, Council has maintained the indusion of Special Schedule § in its Special
Schedules.

All additional funds, aver the rate peg amount, are to be raised as a Special Infrastructure Rate, and will be
reported on separately, as an external restriction.

NSW State Government Review of Local Government

The NSW State Government issued the Independent Local Government Review Panel (ILGRP) report in
2012, in which it was recommended that the City of Ryde either be spiit or form part of a Joint Regional
Organisation.

The NSW State Government has progressed this further an in November 2014 issued its review of the
performance and sustainability of local government through its Fit for the Future (FFTF) initiative. Under the
FFTF Councils need to demonstrate that they meet the Scale and Capacity criteria in the ILGRP report, asa
threshold question, tc be deemed Fit for the Future.

Once they pass that test, they are required to demonstrate how they will be capable of meeting the seven
financial sustainability criteria, to ensure that they will become sustainable, provide effective and efficient
services, Should they not meet the criteria immediately, Councils are required to prepare an Action
Implementation Plan to ensure that they meet lhc crlona by tho end o( 201&!2018
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

The NSW State Government appainted IPART to receive and review submissions from Council in refation to
FFTF. Submissions were to be submitted by 30 June 2015.

The City of Ryde resolved to stand alone as a Council and make a submission to IPART to that affect. Also
the City of Ryde also resolved to make a Joint Submission to IPART, with Hunter's Hill Council and Lane
Cove Council for a Joint Regional Authority (JRA), where certain powers would be vested in the JRA and
executed on behalf of Council. Those powers mainly relate to certain planning powers.

IPART are due to hand down their report on the submissions received. to the NSW State Government by 16
October 2015, Until that happens, Council is unable to determine the impact of the FFTF initiative,

NOTE24 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

There were no operations discontinued by Council during the year,

NOTE 25 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Council has no Intangible Assets to report.

NOTE26 REINSTATEMENT, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION LIABILITIES

Council has a liability for the reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration of sporting fields, which were old
landfill sites. Whist it would be preferable to be able to access and list the actual sites and the cost for such
works, it is nat possible to do so.

What Council has been able to estimate, based on historical events, is that an amount of $200,000 is

required per annum to top dress those fields that were old landfill stes. This amount has been included in
future projects, and is funded from the Domestic Waste Management Charge each year
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Council measures the following assets and liabilties at fair value on a recurring basis:

* Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
* |nvestment property
+ Financial assets

Fair value hierarchy
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to
a level in the fair value hierarchy as fallows:

tevel1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites that the entity can
access at the measurement date.

Leve/2 - Inputs cther than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel o
liabilty, either directly or indirectly.

Level3 - Unabsenable inputs for the asset or kability.

The table below shows the assigned level for each asset and liability held at fair value by the Council:

Lovel 2 Leveld Total|
Significant Significant|
30 June 2016 MNote observable
inputs
($000's
Investment properties 14 105628 106 628
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 9
Operational lend 102,333 102,333
- Comm by land - 1363318 1393318
Land ungar roads 11552 11,662
- Bulldings (Specsised end non-speaaks ed) - 61469 61,469
-Roads Bndges. Footpaths = 363975 363,976
Stormwasar dramnagsa 200633 200,633
TOTALS - 2238908 2.238.908
Level 2| Leveld Total|
Significant Significant]
30 June 2014 Note obsaervable observable
inputs inputs
($000's ($000's)| ($000's)|
Investment properties 14 - 2800 2800
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 9
- Operanonal |and - 164,239 164,239
- Communty land - 1383318 1383318
- Land under roads - 11552 11,652
- Bulldings (Spacialsed and non-speasksed) . 63,042 63,042
-Roads Bndges. Footpaths . 336 541 336,641
Somwatsr dranags 131,848 181,848
TOTALS - 2153340 2153340

| B B BN S -
G AN B 2 @ City of Ryde

Item 3 - Attachment 6 - 2014-2015 Financial Statements — audited



® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
(@ your doorstep

Finance and Governance Committee Attachments Page 63

ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

The Council's financial assets relates to its investments in term deposits and FRN's. The information
included under 6(b) is considered sufficient to meet the Fair Value disclosures requirements hence additional
information is not inciuded under this note.

The Council does not have any liabilities which are fair valued.

Valuation processes

Council's non-current assets are continually revalued (over a 5 year period) in accordance with the fair
valuation policy as mandated by the Office of Local Government. Further details of the revaluations palicy is
pravided under note 1(k).

Level 3 measurements

Invesiment properties

On an annual basis, the Coundail engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair
value of its investment properties. As at 30 June 2015, the fair values of the land have been determined by
Scott Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd.

All investment property valuations are included in level 3 of the hierarchy. The value of investment property
has determined using either using the capitalisation of rental income or with reference to value of similar
propenties within the area. The key uncbservable input to the valuation is the rent or price per square metre.
Further details have been provided below

The Council engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Council's
buildings. Buldings were last revalued in the 30 June 2012 financal year and the fair values were
determined by SPM Asset Pty Ltd

Gross Value of each building, which is obtained by applying a unit rate to a structure or a square metre rate
to a building, based on its current replacement cost, which is the lowest cost of replacing the economic
benefits of the existing asset using modemn technology. The key uncbservable input being the rate square
metre has been benchmarked to construction costs of similar properties across the industry.

Further details relating to the rate per square metre has been provided below

C it Land un
The Council engages extemnal, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Council's
Community Land. Valuation of Operational Land and Land Under Roads (LUR) is performed by the Council's
internal valuations team.

The fair value of land has been determined by referencing it to current prices in an active market for similar
propetties. Where such information is not available, current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences are considered. Appropriate adjustments are also made for the inherent features of the property
such as fire-prone, flood zonings and usabllity of the fand.

The fair value for Community Land and Land Under Roads (LUR) has been determined using a unit rate per
square metre, derived from the Valuer General's valuation performed for rating purposes, and applying to the
total area. Given the nature of Community Land and Land Under Roads (LUR). comparable sales data is
generally not available. As the Valuer General's valuation considers land in all zoning, average unit derived
from Valuer General's valuation is considered the most practicable approach to valuing Community Land
and Land Under Roads (LUR)

Community Land was last revalued at 30 June 2008. Coundll has resolved to not value Land Under Roads
(LUR) and Operational Land was last revalued at 30 June 2015,

The key unobservable input to the valuation is the rate per square metre, for which, further detads have been
provided below
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ITEM 3 (continued)

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

Infragtructure assets

ATTACHMENT 6

Valuations for infrastructure assets are performed internally by the Councd's internal engineering team. The
gross value of the infrastructure assets are determined by unit rate to total volume which is normally square

metres, lineal metres or individual items,

The unit rate, which is a key unobservable input, is determined using an assessment of average historical
internal costs, and rates from contracts with third party suppliers. Infrastructure assets were last revalued at

30 June 2013,

The information presented below on uncbservable input has been limed to significant components of the
infrastructure assets as it impracticable to provide information for all components.

Reconciliation of movements

The items classified under level 3 are investment properties and property, plant and equipment
(including infrastructure assets). The reconciliation of movements in these assets is presented

under note 14 and 9 respectively.

Asset / Liability Carrying Key Expected range | Description of how
Category amount Unobservable of inputs changes in inputs
(At fair inputs will affect the fair
value) value
($000's)

Investment Properties 104,478 | Rate per square $750- $2.975 per | The higher the rate,
melre and rental square metre the higher the fair
rate per square value,
metre

Infrastructure, Property,

Plant and Equipment

- Operational land 103,019 | Rate per square | $109- $2.038 per | The higher the rate,
metre square metre the higher the fair
value.
Significant variances
In the rate per
square metre is
reflective of the
Inherent features of
the land such as
zoning and
useability,
- Community land 1,393,318 | Rate per square | $109 per square | The higher the rate,
metre metre — average | the higher the fair
value,
- Land under roads 11,552 | Rate per square $109 per square | Council has resolved
metre metre — average | not to value Land
Under Roads. except
those parcels
received since 2008,
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ITEM 3 (continued)

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2015

ATTACHMENT 6

Asset / Liability Carrying Key Expected range | Description of how
Category amount Unobservable of inputs changes in inputs
(At fair inputs will affect the fair
value) value
($000's)

- Buildings 61,933 | Rate per square $ 750-$ 2,975 The higher the rate,
(Specialised and metre per square metre | the higher the fair
non-specialised) value,

Significant variances
In the rate are
refiective of the
condition of the
building, nature of
the building and
materials used to
consiruct the
building.

- Roads, Bridges, 363,975 | Rate per unit of Footpath- $7510 | The higher the rate,
Footpaths measure $565 (granite) per | the higher the fair

square metre value.
average

Kerb & Gutter -
$150 per lineal
metre - average
Road & car
parking Pavement
- $100to $200
per square mefre
average

Bridges - §3,300
to $35,000 per
square metre
average

- Storm water 200,633 | Rate per lineal Conveyance - The higher the rate,
drainage metre or unit Pipe - $350 to the higher the fair

$2,000 per Lineal | value.
Metre average

Pits - $5,000 to

$8,000 per item

average

Transfers between levels of the hierarchy

There were no transfers of assets and liabilities between the hierarchies.

Highest and Best Use

Current use of all assets noted above reflects the highest and best use as Operational Assets, and in
accordance with current planning restricions, the exceptions being the Investment Properties, which are to
be developed, and may require planning changes to allow the development.
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

The City of Ryde Council

Independent auditor’s report to the Council - sg17(2)
Report on the general purpose financial statements

Repart on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financil statements of the City of Ryde Council, which comprise
the statement of financial poxition as at 30 June 2015 and the income statement, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, accompanying notes to the financial statements and the Statement by Councillors and
Management in the approved form as required by Section 414(2) of the Local Government Act 1993,

Councillors” responsibility for the financial statements

The Councillors of the Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Austmalian Accounting Stundands (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Local Government Act 1993 and for such intemal control as the Councillors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our andit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standarnds, Those standands require that
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the
audit 1o obtain reasonable assurmnce whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the avditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of
uccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Councillors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

When this sudit report is included in an Annual Report, our procedures include reading the other
information in the Annual Report 1o determine whether it contains any material inconsistencies with
the financial statements,

Our audit responsibility does not extend to the Original Budget Figures included in the Income
Statement, Statement of Cash Flows and the Original Budget disclasures in notes 2(a) and 16 and the
Projections disclased in note 17 to the financial statements, nor the attached Special Schedules, and
accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

PricavaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 *80 433 757
Darling Park Tower 2, 20t Sussex Street, GPO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW 171
T +61 2 8266 0000, F +61 2 8266 9999, Winio Joc.com.an

Lisbity lmted by & sheme spproved under Proteescnal Ssandanss Legaimon
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

i

pwc

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions,

Auditor’s opimion:
In our opinion:

() the Council's sccounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the Loeal
Government Act 1993, Chapter 13 part 3 Division 2 (the Division); and

(b) the financial statements:
(1) have been presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division

(i1)  are consistent with the Councll’s accounting records

(iii) present fairly, in all material respects, the Council’s financial position as at 3o June 2015 and
its Financial Performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Australinn Accounting Standards

(¢) allinformation relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained; and

(d) there are no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements that have come
1o Jight during the course of the audit.

PricevaterhouseCoopers

M& .
Peter Buchholz Sydney
Partoer 28 September 2015
20f2
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Private & Confidentinl
The Muyur

Couneillor Jerome Laxale
Council of City of Ryde
DX 8400

RYDE

Dear Councillor Laxake

Report on the conduct of the Audit for year ended 30 June 2015 ~
Section 417(3)

We have completed our andit of the Gnancial reports of the Council for the year ended 3o June 2015,
In accordance with Section 415 of the Local Government Act 1993,

Our awdit has been conducted in secondance with Austrulian Auditing Standands 1 provide reasonable
asstirance as to whether the financial reports are free of material misstatement. Our procedures
Included exsemination, on a test bosis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosires in the
fimancial reports, and the evaluation of sccounting policies and significant accounting estimates,
These procedures bave been undertaken 1o form an opinion as o whether, io all material respects, the
fimancial reports are presented iy in accordance with Australlan Accounting Stondarnds as well as
st utony requinements so as to present o view which ks consistent with our understanding of the
Council's financial position, the results of its operations and its cash flows

This report shonld be read in conjmmction with our andit opinion on the geneml purpose financial
statements provided under Section 417(2) of the Local Government Act 1903,

Flowing from our audit, there are a number of comments we wish 1o mise concerning the trends in
Council's finances. These are set ont below,

Operating result

Couneil's operating surplus declined from $o5 million in the provious year 1o Sog million in the
current period. The net operating result before capital contributions wis a surplas of $10 million
agalost the presious yenr's surplus of $1.4 million

Cash position
Council's overall cash position increased from $ 106 million to S8 million during the peviod under
review. The following talibe highlights the composition of cash.

2013 2014

sm sm
Externally restricted 6Ho 4
Internally eostricted ™ 36
Unrestricted 5 6
Totl 138 100

PricesoaterhouseCoopers, ABN 32 *8o 4939 =5~
Darting Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Streot, GO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW um
T: 201 2 B266 0000, F: +01 2 Robd 9000, MO uie. con.ou
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Working capital
Couneil's net current assets increased from 845 million 1o $84 million during the period under review.
The valoe of net carrent issets necds o be adjusted in order to establish the ovailable working capital

position,
2015 2014
=m sm
Net current assets 84 45
Less:  External restrictions (27) (1)
Internal restrictions =3) (50)
Add:  Current liabalities deforeod 20 20
Available working capital Fl 3

The effective unrestricted or avallable working capital upon which Council could build its 2o16 budget
was $4 million,

Performance indicators
The financkal reports disclose of a number of indicators in Nete 13 and these are detailed below:

2013 2014
“~ L

Operating Performance Ratio a ]
Own Sowrce Oporating Revenue Ratio 71 Rz
Unrestricted Current Ratio 503 R
Debt Service Cover Ratio 2086 2720
Rates Ontstanding Ratio 38 37
Cash Expense Cover Ratio 16 8}

The Opemting Performance Rutio imprenved 1o 0% and remained above the industey benchmark of o'

The Own Source Operating Revenoe Ratio doclined to 7% but reowined above the industry
benehmark of 60%.

The Unrestricted Current Ratio impeoved and remained above the industey beochmark of 1500
The Delt Serviee Cover Ratio declined but remained well above the industry beachmark of 200

The Rates Outstanding Ratio inereased slightly but remuined better than the industry beochmark of
5%

The Cash Expense Cover Ratio indicated that Council conl] continue to cover its operating costs for 16

months should cash inflows coise. This compares very Bvourably with the indostry benchmark of 3
manths,
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Conneil is considened to be i a sound and stable financial position, All the financial indicatons wre
better than acoepted industry beochmarks

General

The books of accounts and records inspected by us have been kept in an aceurate and consclentious
manner. We thank the General Manager and ber staff for the cooperation and courtesy extended to us
during the course of our andit,

Yours faithfully

PricewaterhouseCoo pers

M .

P L Buchholz Svdney

Partner
28 September 2015
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2015
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2015
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLORS AND MANAGEMENT

made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting

The attached Special Pumpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

« NSW Government Policy Statement "Application of Naticnal Compeltion Poiicy to
Local Govemment”

= Office of Local Govemment Guidelines "Pricing and Casting for Council
Businesses. A Guide to Competilive Neutralty"

« The Local Govemment Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

« The NSW Office of Water, Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water
Guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these Statements

= presents fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for each of
Council's declared Business Activities for the year, and

= accords with Council's accounting and other records
We are not aware of any matter that would render the reports false or misleading inany way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 25 August 2015.

Councillor Bill Pickering Councillor Roy Maggio
Mayor Deputy Mayor
W Q &
Ms Gail Connolly Mr John Todd
General Marager Chief Financial Officer
(Responsible Accounting Officer)
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2015

INCOME STATEMENT OF OTHER BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

(S000's)
‘Ryde Aqualic Leisure | Commercial Waste |
Centre Management
(Category 1) (Category 2)
2015 2014 2015 2014

Income from continuing operations
Annual Charges - - - -
User Charges 5,078 4 651 1,182 811
Fees - - - -
Interest - - - -
Other income 16 120 - -
Grants & Contributions provided foe Non-Capital Purposes - - - -
Profit from the sale of assets - . & -
Total Income From Continuing Operations 5,004 4,781 1,182 811
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on costs 3,104 2,703 . -
Matenals and Contracts 634 742 242 361
Borrowing costs - - - -
Depreciation and impairment 650 1,167
Loss on sale of assets - - - -
Calculated Taxation Equivalents 169 147 - -
Other expenses 168 44 180 206
Total Expenses From Continuing Operations 4,725 4,803 A422 °H

Surplus (Deficit) from Continuing Operations _
|before capital amounts 369 22| 760 214
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes - - - -

Surplus (Deficit) from Continuing Operations
after capital amounts 369 (22) 760 214
Swrplus (Deficit) fom Disceontinued Operations - - - .

Surplus (Deficit) from All Operations before Tax 369 (22)) 760 214
Less Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) 11 - 228 64
t[basod cn_Operating result before capital]
Surplus (Deficit) After Tax 258 (224 532 150
Opening Retained profits * 31,534 31,408 200 200
Adjustments for Amounts Unpaid.-
Taxation Equivalent Payments 169 147 - .
Carporate Taxation Equivalent m - 228 64

Plus: Equity Contributions - - - -
Less, Equity Withdrawals . - - .
Less; TER Dividend payment (non restricted actiities) - - (228) (64))
Less! Surplus Divdend payment (non restricted activities) - -
Closing Retained Profits 32,072 31,534 200 200

RETURN ON CAPITAL (%) 1.13% -0.07% 0.00% 0.00%
Required return on capital (%9 5.34% 5.00% 0.00% 0.00%;
SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL 1,376 1,501 - -

Lifestyle and opportunity @ your daorstep SPFS 5 ‘ Clt\' O[’ D}’dC
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2015

FINANCIAL POSITION OF OTHER BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

(s000's) _ _
Ryde Aquatic Leisure | Commercial Waste
Centre Management
{Category 1) _(Category 2)
2015 2014 2015 2014

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash Asset and cash equivalents 585 1,752 - -
lhvestments - - - -
Receivables 40 72 n 288
Ihventories 12 12 - -
Other 8,533 6.138 383 51
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,170 7,972 704 339
|NON-CURRENT ASSETS

hvestments - = - .
Receivables - - - -
hventories - - - -
nfrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 32,687 20,587 - -
Other - - - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 32,887 29,587 - -
TOTAL ASSETS a1,857 37,559 704 339
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 676 257 447 82
hterest Beanng Liabilities 301 - - =
Provisions 780 847 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,847 904 447 82
|NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables - - - -
Interest Beanng Liabilities 2,818 - - -
Provisions 1 12 57 57
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,829 12 57 57
itET ASSETS 37,181 36,643 200 200
lEG.ITY

Retained Eamings 32,072 31,534 200 200
Revaluation Reserves 5,109 5108

Council Equity Interest

Minority Equity interest - -

TOTAL EQUITY 37,181 36,643 200 200
- s .
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A statement summarising the supplermental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Special Purpose
Financial Report (SPFS) for National Competition Policy reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are a SPFS prepared for use by the Council and Office of Local Government.  For the
purposes of these staterents, the Council is not a reporting entity.

The figures presented in these specil purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition criteria of applicable Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the AASE and
Australian Accounting Interpretation. The disclosures in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Local Govemment Act and Regulation and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporting,

This special purpose fnancial report, unless otherwise stated, has been prepared in accordance with applicable
Australian Accounting Standards, other authontative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
Urgent | Group C 15 Views, the Local Government Act and Regulations, the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting and the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual.

The statements are also prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account
changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current values of non-current assets, Certain taxes and
other costs, appropnately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of 'competitive neutraity’ to its business activities as part of the national cormpetition
palicy which is being applied throughout Austrabia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is set cut
in the June 1896 Government Policy statement on the "Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government”,
The "Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality” issued by the Office of Local
Government in July 1997 has also been adopted.

The pricing & costing guidelines cutline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a

standard of disclosure requrements, These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing and/er financial reporting
systems and include taxation equivalents: Council subsidies; and retum on investments (rate of retum); and dividends
paid.

Declared Business Activities

In accordance with Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutralty, Council has declared
that the following are to be considered as business activites:

Category 1
Name Brief Description of Activity
Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre Provicion of aquatic and dry court sports and leisure
facilities
Category 2
Name Brief Description of Activity
Commercial Waste Removal Commercial waste collection, recycling and disposal

Monetary Amounts
Amounts shown in the financial statements are in Australian currency and reunded to the nearest one theusand dollars.

Taxation Equivalent Payments

Council i5 liable to pay vanous taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of
operations (General Purpose Financial Statement) like all cther costs. However, where Council does net pay some
taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as ncome tax, these equivalent tax payments have
been applied to all Council nominated business activities and are reflected in the SPFS. For the purposes of disclosing

warative info jon relevant to the private sector equivalent the following taxation equivalents have been applied to
all Council nominated business activities:

Il EEE B EmEm
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year End

Tax Notional Rate Applied %,

Corporate Tax Rate 0%

Land Tax 1.6% of the value in excess of $387 000 but less than
$2,366,000. 2% of the value in excess of $2 366,000

Payroll Tax 5.48% of total labour payments for the individual business
activity in excess of $658000

Stamp Duty Statutory rates as published by the Office of State
Revenue,

Income Tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the busness. Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, # needs to be taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of return required on
capital invested, Accordingly, the return on capital invested s set at a pre-tax level (gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts) as would be apphed by a private sector competitor — that Is, it should include & provision
equivalent to the corporate income tax rate, currently 30%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achleved. Since the
taxation equivalent rs notional, that is, it is payable to the *"Council” as the owner of business operations, # represents an
internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council.

Accordngly, there is no need for disclosure of internal charges in the GPFR, The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent
company tax rate prevalent as at balance date. No adjustments have been made for variations that have occurred during
the year

Local Government Rates & Charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied to all assets owned or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and Debt Guarantee Fees

The debt gusrantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face “true” commercial borrowing costs in
line with private sector competitors. In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the
differential borrowing rate would have been between the commercial rate and the coundl's borrowing rate for s
business activities,

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers and the funding of those subsidies must be explicitly
disclosed Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised
on & range of services in order for Council to meet its community service cbiigations. The overall effect of subsidies is
contained within the Income Statement of Business Activites.

(1) Return on Investments (Rate of Return)

The Policy statement requires that Councils with Category 1 businesses "would be expected to generate a return on
capital funds ermployed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field®. Funds
are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. WWhere a business activity
has required the investment of capital assets, the rate of retumn on investment is disclosed in the Income Statement of
Business Activties.

(i) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dvidends to either itself as owner of a range of businesses or to any extemnal entities.

EE B B
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6
Notes to the Special Purpose

‘The City of Ryde Council

Independent auditor’s report
Report on the special purpose financial statements

Report on the financial statements

Wo have audited the pecompanying financial statements, being the spocial purpose financial
statements, of the City of Ryde Coungil (the Council), which comprises the Statoment of Financial
Position by Bisdiness Activity for the vear ended 30 Junie 2015, the Income Statements by Business
Activity for the year then ended, Notes to the financial statements for the Business Activities identified
by Council and the Statement by Councillon and Management made presaant (o the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practioe and Financial Reporting for the year ended g0 June 2005

Councillors’ responsibility for the financial report

The Councillurs of the Council are responsible for the prepanition and fair presentation of the financil
statements and have determined that the accounting poliches deseribied in note 1 1o the fisancil
statements which form part of the financinl statements, ane appropriate o meet the reguinements of
the Local Government Code of Accounting Practioe and Fnanctal Roporting. The Councillons
responsdbility also inckudes such internal control as the Counclllors determine bs necessary to enable
the prepamtion of the financial statements that are free from puaterial mistatement, whether doe to
error or frand

Awditor’s responsibifity

Our responsibility is Lo express an opinin on the financil statements tased on our andit. We
conductod our amudit in sccordanee with Austreallan Anditing Standaeds. These Auditing Standards
reyquine that we comply with relevant ethical regquinements relating to amlit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable sssuranee whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An auwdit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evideoce about the amonnts and disclosures
in the financial taterents, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, Including the
msessment of the risks of material mistatement of the fisancial statements, whether due to frmd or
error. In muking those risk a ments, the audib ddery internal control rddevant to the entity's
preparation and fukr presentation of the fnanclal stutements in onder to design audit procedures that
wre appropriate in the circrmstances, bt not for the purpose of expressing an opinion an the
effectivenoss of the entity’s internal control. An andit also inchudes evaluating the appropriatencss of
wecounting polickes used and the reasomableness of acconnting estimates made by Couneillors, as well
s evaluating the overall preseotation of the financial statemonts.

We belleve that the andit evideoce we have oltained & sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for
our audit opinion,

Pri rhouseCoopers, ABN 52 *8o 433 757
Darting Park Tower 2, 201 Swssex Streel. GPO BOX 2050, SYONEY NSW
T2 o612 B206 0000, F) 201 2 8206 0000, 10000 DIC AN B
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6
Notes to the Special Purpose |

Auditor s opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements presents Gidy, in all material respeets, the fimancil position
hy Business Activity of The Clty of Ryde Conncil as of 30 June 2015 and its financial performance by
Business Activity for the year then ended in sccondance with the requiremoents of those applicable
Accounting Stundands detsllad in Note 110 the financial statements, and the Local Government Code
of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

Basts of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

Withowt modifying our opinion, we draw sttention to Note 1 to the financlal statements, which
describe the basts of socounting, The financial statoments have been prepared for the purpose of
fulfilling the Councl’s finuncial reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Code of
Acvonnting Practice and Financlal Reporting. As a result, the financial statements may not be saitable
for another purpose. Our report is intendead solely for the Conneil.

Lty

PricowaterhouseCoopens

&,
Poter Buchhols Svdney
Partner 28 Seplember 2013
2
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Schedules — Year Ended 30 June 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Special Schedule 1 - Net Cost of Senices S8 4-5
Special Schedule 2(a) - Staternent of Long Term Debt (Al Purpose) sS 6
Special Schedule 2(b) - Statement of Intemal Leans SS 7
Special Schedule 7 - Condition of Public Works S8 8-10
Special Schedule 8 - Financial Projections SS 1"
Special Schedule 8 - Permissable Income ss 12
Special Schedule 9 - Auditor's Report SS 13-14
Special Schedules - Overall Audtor's Report 885 15-16
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Schedules — Year Ended 30 June 2015

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 1 - NET COST OF SERVICES

Expenses Income from Incom e from
frem contimulng contimuing Nat costof
Function or Adtivity continuing oparations operations sarvicas
operations (man<apital) (capital)
$000 $000 $000 $000_|
Govemance 2,633 187 {2.348)
Adm inigration 18,524 3o (15,313)
Public Order & Safety
Fria Sarvice Lew, Firs Prataction
Emuotgancy Servces 2247 18 {2,201)
Animal Contro! 252 34 (218)
Baach Control
Enforcement of Loca Govt Regs ) 24875 1,772
Emenency Sendces
Othar Publc Order & Satety 1,93 2026
Total Public Order & Safety B.207 1518 |
Heaith 4320 n 59)
Environment
Moxious Plarts and Insect/Vermin Controi
Other Envronment Protoction 4 i (483)
Solid Waste Managameant 15,983 18,155 2,187
Strest Cleaning
Crarage
Stommaler Managament 3.25 !,0_25 -!_0 (2.340)
Total Environment 19,704 19,189 49 {468)
Community Services & Education
Admimstration & Education 905 3 (874)
Socia Frotsction (Wetrs) 1,903 182 {1921
Aged Persons and Disabled 537 538 1
Chilgren's Sanicas 153 28 (141)
Total Community Services & Education 3614 1,918 [FXE I
Housing & Community Amenities
Putlic Camatanas
Qublic Covwaniances 833 200 (639)
Street Lighting 2,201 365 (1.099)
Tawn Planning 6,775 3879 8275 5,379
Othar Community Amenities 138 139
Total Housing & Community Amenities 9,878 4,444 8414 2,983
[Water Supplies
Sewerage Services
Recreation & Culture
Putidic Libranas §5.4%0 R (4.521)
Museums
Art Galanes
Community Centras and Hals 620 74 54 250
Pafarming Arls Vanues
Other Perlorming Arls
Other Cultural Seevcss 285 101
Sporting Grounds and Verues 389 615 315
Swimmng Pools 4,900 5,325 20
Parks & Gardens (Lakes) 7.395 84 1436
Other Sport & Recrasbon 324 56
Total Recreation & Culture 20,379 7424 1877 (11.078)
Il EE §F =
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Schedule 1 - Net Cost of Services (continued)

Experses Incom e from Income from
from continung ceontinuing Net costof
Function or Activity contiming operations operaticns services
operations (mon<apital) (caphal)
$000 $000 $000 3000 |
[Fuel & Energy
Agriculture
Mining, Manufacturing & Construction
Buildng Control 615 188 (427)
Other Mining, Manufecturing & Construction
Total Mining, Manufacturing 8
Construction 815 163 427y
Transport & C icats
Lrban Roads  Local 8,865 2.924 20620 14 649
Lktan Roads  Regiond 12 78 5
Sedad Rurg Roads | Local
Bnidgss on Urben Roeds  Local Y (57
Evidges on Urben Rosds  Regonal
Bridges ca Urten Roede - Cther
Footpaths 1,772 nrm
Aarodromes
Parkang Areas 346 {346)
Other _IE ‘I_SZ (26)
Total Transpont & Communication 11,262 31 20,620 12512
Economic Affairs
Camping Aregs and Cargan Parks
Other Economic Aflars 1,242 1,744 532
Total Economic Affairs 1,212 1.744 532
[TOTALS - FUNCTIONS 93,055 47677 30,960 (14,418)
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES 55421 55421
SHARE OF GAINKDEFICIT) FROM
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
USING EQUITY METHOD
CORRECTION OF FUNDAMENTAL ERROR ®
SURPLUSI{DEFICIT) FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY 83,055 103,098 30,960 41,005
ITEMS &
EXTRAORDINARY {TEMS
SURPLUSIHDEFICIT) FROM ALL ACTIVITIES
| m 93,086 103,008 30,860 41,003

NOTE ! Incudss

Rates and Annual Chargas (incl Ex-Gratia)

Non-Captal Generd Purpese Grans

Intarast oo vesiments

2 As reparted on the Income Statement
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 2(a) - STATEMENT OF LONG-TERM DEBT (ALL PURPOSES)

N

Tatal

Princiga Cutwanding  a0d of Year
| Hon Carrént |
41
5241
5341

TR
ot

(X707
4522
1823

)
(£33
23}

Brnvcipal Gulslandsg & baginning of Vaai | Naw Loars
" Clmest | e Carment

S

Other State Govemmant
otions

Public

OTHER LONG TERM DEET
Ratepayer's Advances
Govemmant Advances
Finance Leases
Deferred

TOTAL LONG TERM DESIT

Financial Instautions
Other

&)

T
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 2(b) - STATEMENT OF INTERNAL LOANS

($°000)
SUMMARY OF INTERNAL LOANS
Trotrawor Amonnt Onigeally | 1018 Repatd Durng he vear | Prncipal Ot mnding
(by Purpose) Ralsed # Principal & iterast™ at £nd of Year
Gonaral
Watar
Sewerage
Domestic Waste Managemenlt
Gas
Othoe (1) 2,000 102 2711
TOTALS 2,000 702)] 2711
DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL INTERNAL LOANS
[ orrower Tonder Dl of | Date | Dales of | Rate of | Amount Total Prncipal
(by purpose) by Pumpose) | Ministers | Raised | Maturty | Interest | Orginalty | Repaid | Outslanding
Appeonal Raisod “|  During o End
the Year | of Year
Principal
& Inferest &
RALC (4)
- Sust Ryder 2,009 (702) 2.
[TOTALS 7,009 Troz)| 7717 |

1 This mcludes intermat Loans from Intermally Restricted Resenes, and not Just those from Extemally

Restricled Resenes
@ The smound rsised Lo the beginning of the year, was drawn down ovor a number of years:

2011/2002 S8 364,737
201202013 8 323,13
20132004 § 1,321,378
TOTAL S 2,009,238
- aAn addlonal amourt of 701,919, including Inferast, was draswn down in 20142015, fo complate the
Surt Ryder Project

lEE §5 EmE
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 7 - CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS
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ATTACHMENT 6

ITEM 3 (continued)

Special Schedule 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)

@ City of Ryde
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

Special Schedule 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)
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3z 85 G ‘18 &

i assets (WDV)

precaable land |

Estimated cost 10 bing assets to o satisfactory condtion
overdue renewals

Asset Renewals (bullding. witastructure & other structutes)
Depraciation. amontisation and impawment

(building, wirastructre & other structures)

Estimated cost 10 bing assets to a satisfactory condition
{overdue renewats)

Infrastructure Asset Performance indicators - Consolidated
Bulldings & Infrastructure Renewals Ratio
and deprecable land imgrovement assets (GBV)

Total value of infrastructure, budding, other structures
Infrastructure backlog ratio (GBV)
Total value of mirastructure, budding. other structures

£
;
i
|

Required ssset mantenance

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance

and &
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 8 - FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS

d that the info
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™ Projections based on the adopted Delwery Plan and revised Long Teem Financial Plan (LTFP)
1 Last Year of the Specsal Rating Vanation, apgwoved on 19 May 2015

Result before Capital Contributions
of
) From income statement
I New capal wovks are mBor non-recumment progects

Geants & Contribubons

General Revenue
The Council has ¢

Asset Sales

®
i nlil
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ITEM 3 (continued)

SPECIAL SCHEDULE 9 - PERMISSIBLE INCOME

ATTACHMENT 6

201415 201516
Calculation Calculation
$'000 $'000

Notional General Income Calculation "'

Last Year Notional General income Y leld 48282 49803

Plus or mirus Adjustments 402 471

Notional General Income 23,685 Wd
Permissible Income Calculation

Special varialion percentage ' 7.00%
OR Rate peg percentage 2.30% 2.40%
OR Crown land adjustment incl. rale peg percenlage

Less expinng special variation amount

Plus special variation amount 3519
OR Plus rale pag amount 1.120
OR Plus crown land adusiment and rale peg amount

Subdatal 49,805 53,793

Plus or minus fast years Cary Forward Tolal 18 20

Less Valuation Objections claimed in the prevous year

Sub-total 18 20
Total Permissible income 49,823 Ea

Less Notional General Income Yield 49,802 53,866

Catch-up or (excess) resull 20 52

Plus Income lost due to valuation objectons claimed !

Less Unused catchup

Carry forward fo next year 20 52
Notes

11 TheNotional General Incoma will not recancia with rate incoma in the fnanoal stasements in the conesponding war Tha
statements are repored on an Accrual sccounting bases whidh) Include smeunts S redata 10 Driof paars' rales income

[2)  Adjestmanis accountior chang2s in the number of 35585 sments and sny incragse or dacressein land value occumng during
meyear The adjustmants are called in the Valuason of Land Act 1916 "supplemensary vaiy aions" 83 deSnedin the Valuaton
of Lend Ac1 1816

13)  TheSpscial Yanabon Percentags 15 inclus e of the Rate Peg percentags and whare appiicatia crown land adju stmernt

[4)  Valuation obpachons are unespectad changes in land values 25 a result of land owners successiuly cbjecting to the lend value
ssuadbythe Valuer-Generd  Councls can daim the vaus of the income lost dus Lo valuabon cbjeclions in any single year

15)  Unusedcach-up amounts will be gecucted if th ey are nol caughtup wanin 2 years Ususlly coundals wil have anoming camy
forwerd figura. Thase amounts can be adustad forin seting the rates in 3 futurs yeor

S mEEs s O EEm

@ City of Ryde
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

S
pwe

City of Ryde Council

Independent auditor’s report
Report on the Special Schedules No. 7 & 8

Report on the Special Schedules No, 7 & 8

We were engaged to audit the accompanying Special Schedules 7 & 8 comprising the Condition of
Public Works and Fimancial Projections, respectively for the City of Ryde Council as at the yenr ended
30 June 2015

Responsibility of Council for Special Schedules No. 7 & 8

The Council i responsibie for the proparation and fair presentation of Spocial Schedules No, 7 & 8in
accordance with the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reportiog
(Guidelines) Update No, 23 This responsibility includes the maintenance of adequate accounting
records and internal controls designod to prevent and detoct fraud and error; designing, implementing
and muintaining (nternal controls redevant W the preparation and fair presentation of Special Schedule
No. 7 & S that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances,

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Special Schedule No. 7 & 8 based on our audit. Because

of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion pamgraph, however, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 1o provide a basis for an sudit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Special Schedules 7 & 8 are based in forecast expenditure over the useful life of public works in the case
of Special Schedule 7 and forecast revenue und expenditure of Council for a period of 10 years in the
case of Specil Schedule 8. Any of the estimates used in preparing these forecasts conld be
inaccurate and therefore we can provide no assurance the forecast information in Special Schedule 7 &
8 will eventuate. In the light of significant uncertainties inberent in forwand looking statements, we
disclaim from forming an audit opinion on these Special Schedules.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the sign ificance of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion Wﬁl.
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
opinion, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on Special Schedules 7 & 8.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable Independence requirements of Anstralian professional
ethical pronotincements,
) Pri houseCoop ABN 52 80 433 75~
Darling Pork Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, GO BOX 2650, SYONEY NSW 1171
DX 77 Sydney, Australia
T +61 2 8266 0000, F +61 2 8266 9009, Wios PUoe.com.au
Liatity (i by & schame 2 unser Prife daras Logy
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6

i

pwc

Restriction ondistribution

Without modifying our opinion, we advise that Special Schedules 7 & 8 have been prepured for
distribution to the Office of Local Government for the purposes of informing the Council's the
Condition of Public Works and Financial Projections. As a result, the schedules may not be suitable for
another purpose. Our report ks intended solely for the council and the Division of Local Government.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

M =

Peter Buchholz Sydney
Partner 28 September 2015

zofa
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6
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The City of Ryde Council

Independent auditor’s report
Report on the Special Schedule No. g

Report on the Special Schedule No. 9

We have andited the accompanying special purpese financial stidement comprising the reconciliation
of totnl permissible general income (Special Schedule No. 9) of The City of Ryde Council (“the
Council™) for the year ending 30 June 2016,

Responsibility of Council for Special Schedule No. 9

The Council is responsible for the prepanition and fair presentation of Special Schadule No. g In
acconlance with the Local Government Code of Aceounting Practice and Finane bl Reporting
(Guidelines) Update No. 2y, This responsibility inchsdes the maintenance of adequate accounting
reconds and intermal controls designed o prevent and detect frand and ervor; designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant 1o the preparation and fair presentation of Speck] Sehodule
Noy o that s free from materal misstatement, whether duoe 1o fraad or erroe; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting polickes; and making acoonnting estimates that are reasanable in the
clrrumstances,

Aunditors’ Responsibility

O responsibility is 1o expross an opinion on Speciul Schedule No. 9 basad on our andit. We
conductod our mdit in sccordance with Australion Awditing Standards. These Auditing Standards
requine that we comiply with relevant ethical regquirements relating to sudit engagements and plan sod
perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurnnce whether Special Schedule No, 9 i free from material
misstatement,

An andit fnvolves performing procedsres to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in Spevial Schodale No. 9. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s jndgment. including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Special Schedule No. g, whether due to fraud or
ervor. An andit also Inchides evaluating the appropritencss of scconnting polickes used and the
reamsonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of Special Schedule No. g

Bocse of the inherent lmitations of an audit, together with the inberent lmitations of internal
control, there s an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected, even
lhmul: the nudit ix properdy planned and performed in accordanee with Anstralinn Asditing
Standands,

In making our tisk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity s peeparation of
Special Schedule No. 0 in onder 1o design andit procedunes that are appropriate in the clecamstianoes,
bt vot for the purpose of expressing un opinkon on the effectiveness of the entity’s lntermal contel.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlont and approprinte to provide o basis for
our audit opinion.

PricowaterfouseCoopers, AN 52 8o 439 "5~
Daritng Park Tower 2, 200 Sussex Street, GPO BOX 2050, SYDNEY NSW 0
T v61 2 200 0000, F: + 60 2 B3040 9500, 10800 J0C.00 mLan

Lasbity anited Dy & shane wde g L
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ITEM 3 (continued) ATTACHMENT 6
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Independence
[0 conducting our sudit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Austradian professional
ethical prosouncements.

Audit Opinion

Im our opindon, Special Schedule No, 9 of The City of Ryde Council for the sear ending 30 June 2006 is
properly drawn up in all material respeets in accordance with the requirements of the Office of Local
Government and in accondance with the books and records of the Council,

Restriction on distribution

Without modifying our opinion, we advise that this sehedule bas been prepared for distriution to the
Office of Local Government for the purposes of confirming that Couneil's reconciliation of Couneil's
total permissible groeral income is presented Girdy, As a result, the sebodule may not be suitable for
another parpose. Oter report s intended solely for the council and the Division of Local Government.

b

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Peter Buchholz Sydoey
Partner 4K September 2015
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